Page 001

CITY OF THOMASVILLE COUNCIL BRIEFING AGENDA
Monday, April 11, 2022 — 6:00 P.M.
7003 Ball Park Road, Thomasville, NC 27360
Mayor Raleigh York, Jr. ~ Mayor Pro Tempore Jeannette Shepherd

1. Call to Order
2. Additions and Deletions to the Agenda
3. Recognitions and Presentations — Rotary’s 100" Anniversary

4. Public Forum on April 18, 2022 — Please sign up in person to speak for two minutes on any topic.
A two-minute time limit will be enforced.

. Public Hearing — Closure of Unopened Portion of Cable Street — R. Winslow/R.E.W. Homes, LLC
. Consent Agenda for action on April 18, 2022

A. Approval of Minutes of the Briefing Meeting on 03/14/22
B. Approval of Minutes of the Special Called (Outside Agency) Meeting on 03/14/22

C. Approval of Minutes of the Council Meeting on 03/21/22
7. Regular Agenda for action on April 18, 2022

A. Consideration of Budget Amendment for CDBG Project City Contribution — Brass Craft
Manufacturing (Project Viceroy)
B. Consideration of Grant Project Ordinance CDBG Project City Contribution — Brass Craft
Manufacturing (Project Viceroy)
. Consideration of Budget Amendment — Water/Sewer Fund (2022 Revenue Refunding Bond
Capital Project)
. Consideration of Uniform Guidance Policy for ARPA Expenditures
Consideration of Nondiscrimination Policy for ARPA Funds
Consideration of Records Retention Policy for ARPA Funds
. Consideration of Resolution Requesting Local Legislation of the N. C. General Assembly
Considering Amending the Process for the Thomasville City School Board from Appointed
Members to Elected Members
H. Consideration of Ordinance Amendment.— Sidewalks and Streets: Creation of Social Districts
to Allow for Consumption of Alcohol on Public Sidewalks
|. Consideration of Resolution for State Assistance Grant — Wastewater Treatment Centrifuge
Project
J. Consideration of Resolution for State Assistance Loan or Grant — Drinking Water Distribution
Svystem — replacing 2-inch galvanized waterlines
K. Consideration of Resolution for State Assistance Grant — to Conduct a Study on Water
Distribution System (Asset and Inventory Assessment)
L. Consideration of Resolution for State Assistance Grant — to Conduct a Study on Wastewater
Collection System (Asset and Inventory Assessment)
M. Consideration of Resolution for State Assistance Grant — to Construct Wastewater Collection
System (Replacement and Expansion of Aging Infrastructure)

(8]

(o]

ETmMoO O

8. Committee Reports and Appointments, Mayor's Report and Appointments, City Manager’s
Report, City Attorney’'s Report on April 18, 2022

9. Additional Items
10. Adjournment




Page 002

ORDINANCE

TO CLOSE AN UNOPENED PORTION OF CABLE STREET,
THOMASVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, a Petition has been filed by the sole owner of all property adjoining
the unopened portion of Cable Street, Thomasville, North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, said unopened portion of Cable Street has never been opened; and

WHEREAS, a closing of said unopened portion of Cable Street would not be
contrary to the public interest, and no individual owning property in the vicinity of
said unopened portion of Cable Street would be deprived of a reasonable means
of ingress and egress to his or her property; and

WHEREAS, easements are reserved within the portion of the right-of-way to be
closed for existing utilities for the purposes of repair, replacement and
maintenance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Thomasville, North Carolina, meeting
in regular session on March 21, 2022, adopted a Resolution of its intent to
close said unopened portion of Cable Street, as shown on a plat entitled "Road
Closure Survey for R.E.W. Homes, LLC" recorded in Plat Book 11, Page 17,
Davidson County, North Carolina registry; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Section 160A-299 of the North Carolina General
Statutes, notice of the aforesaid public hearing was published once a week for
four (4) consecutive weeks in the Thomasville Times on March 23, March 30,
April 6, and April 13, 2022

IT IS THEREFORE ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS:

That the portion of the unopened portion of Cable Street in the zone of the City
of Thomasville referenced above is hereby permanently closed, said unopened
portion of Cable Street being more particularly described as follows:

Being a tract or parcel of land situated in Thomasville, Davidson County North
Carolina and being described as follows:

Beginning at a 3%” iron stake with grid coordinates of N = 783,0156.94, E =
1,680,078.37 (NAD83) on the northern right-of-way line of Willowmoore Avenue,
also being the southeast corner of lot 12 of the W.C. Culp Estate (Plat Book 11 Page
17), thence with the western line of the right-of-way of the undeveloped Cable Street
the following 3 calls: North 04 degrees 24 minutes, 46 seconds East to an existing
iron pipe found 3" above ground level at 102.26° (common corner of lots 12 & 13),
North 04 degrees 24 minutes 46 seconds East to an existing iron pipe found 1”
above ground level at 99.86" (common corner of lots 13 & 14), North 04 degrees 24



Page 003

minutes 46 seconds East to an existing 2" iron stake found 3" above ground level at
99.46’ (for a total distance of 301.58’) a corner on the line of REW Homes, LLC
(Deed Book 2496 Page 1096), thence continuing with the northern right-of-way line
of the undeveloped Cable Street North 89 degrees 17 minutes 08 seconds East for a
distance of 61.13’ to an existing iron pipe with grid coordinates of N = 783,317.39, E
= 1,680,162.69 (NAD83) thence following the eastern right-of-way of the
undeveloped Cable Street and REW Homes, LLC South 04 degrees 33 minutes 31
seconds East for a distance of 367.37’ to a new iron pipe set, thence with a new
right-of-way line at the intersection of Willowmoore Avenue and Cable Street
following a curve to the left with a chord bearing and distance of North 40 degrees
24 minutes 19 seconds West 85.05’, said curve having a radius of 60’ and a length
of 94.52' to an existing iron pipe, the Point and Place of Beginning.

Said property contains 19,185 square feet or 0.44 acres more or less.

Said property is subject to a new 20’ sewer easement.

Subject to current easements and easements to be reserved for existing utilities,
if any, within the portion of the right-of-way to be closed for purposes of repair,
replacement and maintenance.

And it is further ordered that the same be deleted as part of the street system for
the zone of the City of Thomasville, Davidson County, North Carolina; and

It is hereby further ordered that a copy of this Ordinance be filed with the Office
of the Register of Deeds of Davidson County, North Carolina, as required by
Section 160A-299 of the North Carolina General Statutes.

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage

PASSED AND ADOPTED this the 18" day of April, 2022.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor
City of Thomasville, North Carolina

ATTEST:

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk
City of Thomasville, North Carolina

Sworn to and subscribed before me
this the day of April, 2022

[Official Stamp/Seal]

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:




Page 004

RESOLUTION OF THE THOMASVILLE CITY COUNCIL
TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING FORTHE PURPOSE OF
CONSIDERING A PETITION FOR THE
CLOSURE OF A PORTION OF CABLE STREET

A Petition having been filed with the City Council of the City of Thomasville, North
Carolina by Robert E. Winslow of R. E. W. Homes, LLC, a North Carolina
Corporation having an address of 432 Vine Drive, Lexington, North Carolina 27202,
requesting the City to close a portion of Cable Street at the following location:

Legal Description for Cable Street Closure
Part of Plat Book 11 Page 17

Being a tract or parcel of land situated in Thomasville, Davidson County North Carolina and being
described as follows:

Beginning at a %” iron stake with grid coordinates of N = 783,015.94, E = 1,680,078.37 (NADS3) on the
northern right-of-way line of Willowmoore Avenue, also being the southeast corner of lot 12 of the W.C.
Culp Estate (Plat Book 11 Page 17), thence with the westem line of the right-of-way of the undeveloped
Cable Street the foliowing 3 calls: North 04 degrees 24 minutes 46 seconds East to an existing iron pipe
found 3* above ground level at 102.26’ (common corner of lots 12 & 13}, North 04 degrees 24 minutes
46 seconds East to an existing Iron pipe found 17 above ground leve! at 99.86" {common corner of lots
13 & 14), North 04 degrees 24 minutes 46 seconds £ast to an existing k" Iron stake found 3* above
ground level at 99.46' (for a total distance of 301.58’)a corner on the fine of REW Homes, LLC (Deed
Book 2496 Page 1096}, thence continuing with the northern right-of-way line of the unideveloped Cable
Street North 89 degrees 17 minutes 08 seconds East for a distance of 61.13 1o an existing iron plpe with
grid coordinates of N = 783,317.39, E = 1,680,162.69 (NADS3) thence following the eastern right-of-way
of the undeveloped Cable Street and REW Homes, LLC South 04 degrees 33 minutes 31 seconds East for
a distance of 367.37° to a new iron pipe set, thence with a new right-of-way line at the intersection of
willowmoaore Avenue and Cable Street following a curve to the left with a chord bearing and distance of
North 40 degrees 24 minutes 19 seconds West 85.05', said curve having a radius of 60’ and a length of
94.52’ to an existing iron pipe, the Point and Place of Beginning.

Sald property contains 18,185 square feet or 0.44 acres more or less.

Sald property Is subject to a new 20" sewer easement.

It further appearing that Petitioner owns the realty on both sides of such portion of
Cable Street; and
It further appearing that the closing of sald portion of Cable Street will not deprive

any individual of a reasonable means of Ingress or egress to such individual's
property and is not detrimental to the public interest; and



Page 005

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing facts and under the power
and authority granted to the City Council of the City of Thomasville under N.C.

General Statute §160A-299,

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that a public hearing be held at the Councll Meeting at
7003 Ball Park Road, Thomasville, North Carolina at 6:00 P.M. on the 18" day of April,
2022 to consider and act upon the said Petition for the closing of said street; and

BE IT HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be published once a
week for four (4) successive weeks prior to said hearing in the Thomasville Times, a
newspaper published In the Clty of Thomasvilie, Davidson County, North Carolina,
and that a copy of this Resolution be sent by registered or certified mail to all
owners of the properties adjoining the above-described portion of Cable Street who
did not join in the Petition for Street Closing, as shown on the Davidson County tax
records, and that a Notice of the Closing and Public Hearing shall be prominently

posted in at least two places along the said street.
W M- ‘
Ralelgh York, Jr., Maybr

Adopted this 21% day of March, 2022,

ATTEST:

Wendy S. Martln
; City Clerk



Page 006

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY

To the City Council of the City of Thomasville, North Carolina.

l, Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the
petition attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all
owners of real property lying in the area described therein, in accordance with G. S.

160A-31, as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of
the City of Thomasville, this 21% day of February, 2022.

Wendy S. Martib N
City Clerk




Page 007

AL | ggi’ 7 / _ ROV ] ————
-- s e ] § - e . .
il tggéggéeig; \ 7. |
jz.;.,‘t.g i "1 ;i .s ere : gs - / / / -]
E,[g S 'fﬁaé izgsg g;;ggggg \ /J;} //:/‘/// g Q é ; i
Foyat e A Y
ONA YT R ) g s TRAN,
A 2% bl Lo ﬁfsgéillnainisgﬁ §/§ EEEE : fﬁ'# // L §:EE ggg °3
EEQ g "'§3 48 r ;E f§/ // 2/5 38 §5§' Eﬂé 3 §
§§§§.?\ &8 Eiiﬁ; gég gES: / '9,@’ // _ — < L % ix =H8
& Lo S
W w | 2 I EEEE l (\ ( (J 2
8

T 4T 300000 0

Wmn!u ‘ u% ‘f:“:“"
Pl LAt h
e W I i
=3 SR § T - ——
| s I8¢ L] 20} .oy,
| J ’ .' " \ IO i ov9700 5 ' / = ———
13 | [ \ gk | { 1
QE I ]’ m\‘ ; Jg . | !
= T B | ‘T T '
Tt fei2 L ) K sl | '
5 I B N L VSRR g |
|3 ESSE \ ®i§§: ’ i ) It E; l'
& w dgct AR } " S
, \ I T s g
[ ! e { N L f5
I \ [ i \‘\“a b l S ' !‘ 1
& ] E !
! b LT W I I
***** FVIOH €2 ikt 3090 5 s g
BS'I e A g T — 0 I _ | k \ "], " | g (ES
. / @ JE‘;.A?-T*'_"“—-——&_“_“_ ,g
| 1A I §
-
Voo
L
!
|

C-2587

|
|
|
]
l-
I3
= . 3 \ \
I-E EgEh £ %
- Y \
e L1 ! & \ <
: B E ‘ \ gggg . 5:& /
{ ;_ﬁ:
! ! > 8eF ;! g%
: § | AN < o BR
g Ly o ) B
o o :' B2
e ‘N”Q“(;%\R Jn \ / / g LﬂE%gﬁ
e, e g, “"“\.._&_%” ;. X Z &
:}‘:._‘.:-‘;-.,‘_\5{:3“ w}s’;ﬁg‘_& %00 *\z.-,-l,::-};‘. ( .‘_ﬁn " / { g m 8 gé’-é
H‘}A—.k*c\\h " / / / E 8 % EE%’
k\;«vx‘?\_ o ™~ Y - ] ag
TSR ~ 2=
o ! s | P




Page 008

NORTH CAROLINA J PETITION TO CLOSE

DAVIDSON COUNTY ) ( M (—E- . STREET

TO: Members of the City Council of the City of Thomasuville, N.C.

The undersigned Petitioners do hereby respactfully petition the City Council of
the City of Thomasville, North Carclina to close a street in the Cily of Thomasville
known as @thof M___’“Street as shawn in Plat Book ___, Page ___.

N Porsion of

In support of the Petition, the Petitioners say:

This street Is not nesded for any purposs. The underaigned ara sl of the owners
of adjacent praperty, and the glesing of the street would deny acesss to ho ane, The
closing of said street ig net adverse to the public interest.

WHEREFORE, the Pelitioners respastfully petition the City Ceuncil of the GCity of
Thomasville, Nerth Gargling, under autherity granted o the said City Ceunell in Beetion
160A-299 of the General Statutes of North Caroling, to grant and pass a Reselution gnd
Ordinance closing that street krown as CABE, Street lecated in the Cily of
Thomasville as deseribed above, raserving sasements for any/sll utilities that exist at

the time of closure, ¥ A Pokrioy OF CARCR ST ¥

- e,

Respaatfully submitied this JST_day of Sefenvedan2d

(SEAL)
B0 Hopmes LAC (sEAL)

(SEAL)
(SEAL)

(BEAL)
{(SEAL)

AN TR TRARL A




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DAVIDSON COUNTY
! Aaﬁfmﬁ e . a Notay Public of
B . County, North Carelina, do hereby certify that

personally appeared hefore me this day and
acknowledged the execution of the faregoing instrument.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the 3 day of ¢ / f}&}u-aﬁf— ' ZOQIU,.

L

JEFFREVSEBERG
Notary Pubfic

Davidson Count
My cernrnlsslon Explru i NG

My Commission Ekplres 5 7’

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DAVIDSON COUNTY

vt . _ .+ @ RNetary Publle eof
County, Noih Carclina, dé hereby cerify that
personally appeared hefore me this day and
acknowledged the execution of the foregeing inatrument.

Witnese my hand and notarial seal, this the day of 7 20

- . i AR R

Notary Public {{SEALY}
My Commiesion Expires;

STATE OF NORTH CARQLINA
DAVIRSON CQUNTY

Vo ] ‘ B , @ Notary Public of
County, Nerth Carolina, do hereby cerify that
personally appearsd befare me this day and
acknowledged the execution of the foregoing instrument.

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this the dayeof .20

| Notary F’ﬁhllc h {{SEALY
My Commisgion Expires:

Page 009



Page 010

2021020617

DAVIDSON COUNTY NC FEE €26
STATE OF NC REAL ESTATE EX1
$1020.00

PRESENTED & RECORDED
ORMRI2021 02:46:K1 PM
MICHAEL HORNE

REGISTER OF DEEDS

BY: NATASHA MCKENZIE

DEPUTY

BK: DE 2496

PG: 1096 - 1104

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
Bxcise Tax: $1,020

Parce] Ideptifier No. 1604400000002; 16064000A0023B, 1604300000012; 16044A0000032A

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY JONATHAN S. RAYMER, A LICENSED NORTH CAROLINA ATTORNEY.
DELINQUENT TAXES, IF ANY, TO BE PAID BY THE CLOSING ATTORNEY TO THE COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR UPON DISBURSEMENT OF CLOSING PROCEEDS.

MailBoxto: GRANTEE
This instrument was prepared by: INATHAN S, RAYMER. ESO., LAW FIRM CAROLINAS
Brief description for the Index: VARIOUS TRACTS. 401 UNITY STREET — -
THIS DEED made this 10™ day of AUGUST 2021 by and between

GRANTOR ; GRANTEE
DNarvell Milton Beck, Trustee of the R.E. W, Homes, LLC
Beck Family Trust, established by Will
of James Henry Beck filed in 01-E-138, WJ? 1“;123]31‘5351
Davidson County Clerk of Court WALLBURG, NC 27373
Gary Leon Beck, Executor of the Estate of PROPERTY ADDRESS(ES):
Nannie Lee S. Beck, filed in 21-E-1051, 401 UNITY STREET
Davidson County Clerk of Court THOMASVILLE, NC 27127
Darrell Milton Beck and spouse,
Saundra C. Beck
Gary Leon Beck and spouse,
Debbie J. Beck
Sylvia Diane Beck Rich (unmarried)
MAILING ADDRESS:
P.0. BOX 2841
THOMASVILLE, NC 27361

Submitted e'lectron'icaﬂg by "Black, Slaughter & Black, PA"
in compliance with North Carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the pavidson County Register of Deeds.

2021020617



Page 011

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
has and by these prescats does grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee in fee simple, all that certain lot or parce] of land
situated in DAVIDSON County, North Carolina and more particularly deserfhed as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED FOR A MORE PARTICULAR DESCRIPTION AND
EXHIBIT “B* ATTACHED FOR A DETAILED SURVEY OF THE SAME

Note: See Exhibit “C” regarding the Certificate of Trust for the Grantor Trust

The property hereinabove-described was acquired by Grantor by instrument filed in Deed Book 1285, Pages 1605, Deed Book
1921, Page 905, and Deed Book 1434, Page 929.

All or a portion of the property herein conveyed does not include the primary residence of & Grantor.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging to the
Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, as Executor of the Estate of Namnie Lee S, Beck, Deceased, covenants that the said party has not placed or suffered to be
placed any presently existing lien or encumbrance on said property, and that said party will watrant and defend title to the same
against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through, under or on account of Grantor, as Exccutor of the Estate of Nannic
Lee S. Beck, Deceascd, insofar as it is the said party’s duty to do so by virtnc of the seid party's office as Executor as aforesaid,
and no further.

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee simple, has the right to convey the same
in [ee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the title
against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever, other than the following exceptions:

THIS CONVEYANCE IS MADE SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF RECORD, IF ANY,
AND AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE CURRENT YEAR. THIS CONVEYANCE IS ALSO SUBJECT TO ALL DEBTS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has duly executed the foregoing as of the day and year first sbove writlen.

BECK FAMILY TRUST
established by Will of

James Henry Beck filed in 01-E-138,
Davidsen County Clerk of Court

- {f)ﬁ e Mo 2R
DARRELL MILTON BECK, Trustee

State of NORTH CAROULINA
County of GUILFORD

1, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that DARRELL MILTON BECK, Trustee for the Beck Family Trust, either

being known to me or proven by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the vohmtary
due execotion of the foregoing instrument for the purposes and in the capacity stated therein.

Witness my hand and Nolarial stamp or seal this _Z f day of August 2021. —
. S, . . — ) . e 5 g f
My Smmission Flgiges: WES O‘JH e "o, ol = e

Sommission P & . -
RS FADees T, Notary Public
fied 0,k A ON (ol /S
= H K H ety d Pt - ) -
0P8 > % 18 9V e Shke
- R I .t ] 58’- L » ;X /-
"R W ¥~ .55 “:_'l- s O Yy s
\'\ "r os %ﬂ s, o .'l 5
e g
W %, & &

¢y,
l""'luuultl‘“"

2021020617



Page 012

N WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has duly executed the foregoing as of the day and year first above written.

ESTATE OF NANNIE LEE 8. BECK
filed in 21-E-1051, Davidson County Clerk of Court

BY: '&’ N J?)Mé—-
GARY LEON BECK, Executor

State of NORTH CAROLINA
County of GUILFORD

1, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that GARY LEON BECK, Executor for the Estate of Nannie Lee 5. Beck,
either being known to me or proven by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the
vohuntary due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes and in the capacity stated therein.

‘Witness iny hand and Notarial stamp or seal this Z :fg day of August 2021.

My Commission Expires: L// 3/2""2‘* i - @é//%ﬁ

(i, Notary Public

2‘:;9 7""""9
a “.-b-..‘ » ) -
7@ oG ) o /B Ml
igl B > i3
AR WY
%’ "."' T",' A‘f
"b"-”c:'-.--" ‘::‘s‘
"‘"'mmm“"

(NOTARY AND SIGNATURE BLOCKS CONTINUE AS FOLLOW)

2021020617



Page 013

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has duly executed the foregoing as of the day and year first above written.

; .
2 Gty ftt LBy [5 cat” (SEAL)
DARRELL MILTON BECK

* r—
A, coa C. Dot (SEAL)
SAUNDRA C. BECK

State of NORTH CAROLINA
County of GUILFORD

1, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that DARRELL MILTON BECK md SAUNDRA C. BECK, either being
known to me or proven by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the valuntary due
exccntion of the foregoing instrument for the purposes stated therein. i

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal this /! day of August 2021.

— -
j ) e ,--”/ s 2 /
My CommissionExpkm:ﬂ3{ 202_"’ » ‘::;" ‘-“.:"";:,," 7 /@f_ﬁéy %{—4
»

% Notary Public

3“ »° ".
(Affix Seal) igf & 3 iz ,45/7‘4 Shtele
L% % e
%. u.‘. “-’ ',.o_i:sz?
“u:“é il ol
""“"lmnml““"‘

(NOTARY AND SIGNATURE BLOCKS CONTINUE AS FOLLOW)

2021020617



Page 014
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has duly exesuted the foregoing as of the day and year first above written.

f‘(pﬁ & i JRech_ (SEAL)
GARY LEON BECK

Wil ﬁffwr:\ 6&&& (SEAL)

DEBBIE J. Bpﬁj;](

State of NORTH CAROLINA
County of GUILFORD

1, the vndersigned Notary Public, do hereby cestify that GARY LEON BECK and DEBBIE J. BECK, either being known to me
or proven by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the voluntary due execution of the
foregoing instrument for the purposes stated therein,

‘Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal this day of August 2021.
My Commission Expires: ql/jzuz ‘I #“‘*(\ cesmnn,
;f. . 4@‘3.5 Notary Public
£g 7 ¢ i -3 .ol
(Affix Seal) ggc o %* E:E T&/‘h’: D I e
5N T g
]s>_° Y. ff

{NOTARY AND SIGNATURE BLOCKS CONTINUE AS FOLLOW)

2021020617




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has duly executed the foregoing as of the day and year first above written.

SpoMhe St

adi ) (SEAL)

/SYL.VIA DIANE BECK RICH '

Page 015

State of NORTH CARCLINA

County of GUILFORD

1, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that SYLVIA DIANE BECK RICH, ecither being known fo me or proven by
satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the voluntary due execution of the foregoing

instrument for the purposes stated therein,

‘Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal this

My Commission Expires: L_{J j__;" /2_07&‘-{

(Affix Seal)

R ““nlﬂlﬂl”,‘ ooy
Y,

‘e,
%,

\‘.\O.C‘.'.'t‘
¢ L]
O

,
NS

*-P
(D

hY

Uy,
Qy.
*,‘ .

UL
ay,

P\ 18Ny
%1'“\‘

00

v
Ay

"&nl‘l‘}!

ot
p-J

]

o

U

ik
J ?“"/L day of August 2021.

Notary Public

’7:’/4671‘{!. lg/f‘f‘“—'t‘“

o
b

(o)
O

14

-
%3: .t‘*i wenr?
J‘."’ A/o
e4g, W
Hryspund

o

(LEGAL DESCRIPTION NEXT PAGE)

2021020617



Page 016

EXHIBIT “A”
Legal Description

A certain tract of land containing approximately 22.69 acres, lying in Thomasville Township, Davidson County,
North Carolina, being more patticularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at an existing iron pin in the southern margin of the right-of-way of Unity Street and the
northwestern comer of Carlton Summers (Deed Book 2246, Page 1492), and thence following the western margin
of Summers, South 04° 29° 22 West 115.74 feet to an existing iron pin in the western boundary of Summers;
thence confinuing along the western boundary of Summers, South 03° 39’ 48” West 92.79 feet to an existing iron
pin the southwestern corner of Sunumers; thence along the western boundary of Lots 39, 38, 37, 36, 35, 34, and 33
of the King Haven Subdivision, Phase 2, as described in Plat Book 47, Page 62 of the Davidson County Registry,
the following two (2) conrses and distances: (1) South 03° 48’ 58" West 613.34 feet o an existing iron pin; and
(2) South 04° 09’ 00" West 297.71 feet to an existing iron pin in the southwestern corner of Lot 33; thence along
the southem boundary of Lot 33, North 61° 52° 34" East 59.60 feet to an existing iron pin in the southeastern
corner of Lot 33; thence along the eastern boundary of Lot 33, North 18° 19° 10” Bast 19.54 feet to a calculated
point; thence a new line through the former property of Lot 32 the following three (3) courses and distances: (1)
South 30 19° 52" East 114.76 feet to a calculated point; (2) South 00° 21° 52 West 34.65 feet to a calculated
point; and (3) South 48° 22’ 36” East 67.84 feet to a calculated point in the western boundary of Lot 15 of the
King Haven Subdivision, Phase 1, as described in Plat Book 42, Page 26 of the Davidson County Registry; thence
along the western boundary of Lot 15, South 17° 38" 37” West 294.31 feet o an existing iron pin in the
southwestemn corner of Lot 15 and northwestern corner of the George Hoover Heirs (Deed Book 92, Page 379);
thence along the wastern boundary of Hoover, Mary Johuson (Deed Book 209, Page 371), Alton Jefiries (Deed
Book 579, Page 412), and Marion Craddock (Deed Book 2148, Page 786), South 02° 10° 21" West 431.56 feet to
an existing ivon pin in the southwestern corner of Craddock and northern boundary of Lillie Gainey (Deed Book
676, Page 804); thence alone the northern boundary of Gainey, South 87° 34° 42” West 94.27 feet io an existing
iron pin in the northwestern corner of Gainey and the northeastern corner of Timothy Finch (Deed Book 1306,

Page 1778); thence along the northern boundary of Finch, North 85° 01° 01” West 177,23 feet to an existing iron
pin the northwestern corner of Finch and the northeastern comer of Karen Black (Deed Book 1663, Page 1220);

thence along the northern boundary of Black, North 83° 41° 24 West 110.03 feet to an existing iron pin in the
north western corner of Black and corner with David Durant (Deed Book 1464, Page 1150); thence afong the
boundaries of Durant, Juan Uribe-Rodriguez (Deed Book 2197, Page 1708), Stephanie Gardner (Deed Book 1693,
Page 1968), Jerry Dean (Deed Book 2418, Page 820), and Secu*re Inc. (Deed Book 2279, Page 2325) the
following eight (8) courses and distances: (1) North 38° 48° 19” West 89.02 feet to an existing axle; (2) North 37°
51" 21” West 18.14 feet to an existing iron pin; (3) North 38° 24° 47" West 45.97 feet to an existing iron pin; (4)
North 40° 24* 44" West 59.97 feet to an existing iron pin; (5) North 01° 35° 42” West 108 feet to a new iron pin;
(6) South 37° 18’ 17 Bast 20 feet to a new iron pin; (7) North 45° 31” 59” East 140 feet to a new iron pin; and (8)
North 42° 44° 15” West 150 to a new iron pin in the eastern margin of the right-of-way of Cable Sireet; thence
North 45° 01’ 51” East 50.45 feet to a new iron pin; thence along and departing the eastern right-of-way of Cable
Street traveling northwatd, North 04° 33’ 31* East 1,007.25 feet to an existing iron pin; thence South 89° 17’ 08"
West 61.13 feet to an existing iron pin; thence South 04° 24’ 46 West 301.58 feet to an existing iron pin in the
northern margin of the right-of-way of Cable Streef; thence along the northern margin of the right-of-way of Cable
Street, North 85° 16” 26” West 155 feet to an existing iron pin; thence departing the northern margin of the right-
of-way of Cable Street and traveling along the eastem boundary of Fimmy Holder (Deed Book 1369, Page 219)
and Lester Land I (Deed Book 1949, Page 260), North 04° 36* 03” East 287.22 feet to an existing iron pin in the
northeast corner of Lester Land III; thence along the northern boundary of Lester Land I, South 85° 16° 03"
West 162.26 feet to an existing iron pin in the eastern margin of the right-of-way of Memorial Park Drive; thence
along the eastern margin of the right-of-way of Memorial Park Drive in a northward direction, North 17° 45° 427
East 400.20 feet to a new iron pin in the intersection of the eastern margin of the right-of-way of Memorial Park
Drive and the southern margin of the right-of-way of Unity Street; thence along the southern margin of the right-
of-way of Unity Street, South 83° 15° 21 East 102,33 feet fo a new ircn pin; thence the are of a curve to the left
with a radius of 1,175.92 feet a chord distance of 533.89 fect bearing North 83° 57° 06™ East to a new iron pin;
thence North 70° 22° 31” East 32.53 feet to a existing iron pin, the point and place of BEGINNING, being
approximately 22.69 acres, more ot less, according to a survey for Darrell Beck, 401 Unity Street, by Horner &
Associates, PA, Job No. 8067, dated November 18, 2020.

7

2021020617



EXHIBIT B

Current Schedule of Approved Subdivisions

109
Braoke Ridge

Emblier Road
Fox Meadow

PllgrimAcres e
Spry Road e it e e e e
Swicegood Farms,

Unity Street N
Wallburg Fields South T

Presold Homes on Scattered Lots maximum of $375,000

Spec Homes on Scattered Lots maximum of $250,000

SD's developed by REW Homes, LLC

Pege 8 of §

2021020617

Page 017



Page 018

EXHIBIT «C*
Certificate of Trust

The undersigned Trustee hereby certifies the following:

The BECK FAMILY TRUST (“Trust Agreement™™) was established by the Will of James Henry Beck filed in 01-BE-
138, Davidson County Clerk of Court, North Carolina, and appointed DARRELL MILTON BECK as “Trustee™.

1. The address of the Trustee is: P.0. Box 2841, Thomasvifle, NC 27361

2. The initial Trustee of the Trust is: Darrell Milton Beck
3. The present Trustee is: Darrell Milton Beck

4. The Trustee under the Trust Agreement is authorized to acquire, sell, convey, encumber, lease, bomrow,
manage and otherwise deal with interests in real and personal property in the Trust name. All powers of the
Trustee are fully set forth in the Trustee Powers Article of the Trust Agreement.

5. This Trust has not been revoked and there have been no amendments limiting the powers of the Trustees over
trust property.

6. No person or entity paying money to or delivering property to the Trusiee shall be required to see to jts
application. All persons relying on this document regarding the Trustee and its powers over trust property shall
be held harmless for any resulting loss or liability from such reliance. A copy of this Trust Certificate shall be

just as valid as the original.
The undersigned certify that the statements in this Certifjcate of Trust are true and correct and that it was executed
in the County of Guilford, North Carolina on the day of August 2021.
BECK FAMILY TRUST

‘l

DARRELL M}LTON BECK, Trustee

State of NORTH CAROLINA
County of GUILFORD

I, the undersigned Notary Public, do hereby certify that DARRELL MILTON BECK, Trustee for the Beck Family
Trust, either being known to me or proven by satisfactory evidence, personally appeared before me this day and
acknowledged the volumary due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes and in the capacity stated

therein.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal this W"" day of August 2021. //é
My Commission Expires: lf/ / 3 /&2"{ VUSHI Ty, w’é if;‘ 4&42‘

‘“‘ s, ¥
i, i
X .. T % No otary Pubhc

’ T feith Bk

%,
2%
o

.
>

.

w.o“

(Affix Seal)

.o aw
rme

JM
A
=
t'. -{ a
% S
*e,"
"""guﬁli-i

&

)
s,
o,

b gt

2021020617



SR S W
- Vi P BB

=

I AP
P surm o L=t
e

esieanny
S
il

i

o
Jooapanneazzaz

LA CETT N

£, Wc 37380
JaTe-1213

soe7
HORNER &

ifd SALFW STREET,
MEeE (3331470

OCIATES, PA

SUREYIMG AND LND L
', THOMASAVELL

Fob e
ASS




Page 020

Legal Description for Cable Street Closure

Part of Plat Book 11 Page 17

Being a tract or parcel of land situated in Thomasville, Davidson County North Carolina and being
described as follows:

Beginning at a %" iron stake with grid coordinates of N = 783,015.94, E = 1,680,078.37 (NAD83) on the
narthern right-of-way line of Willowmoore Avenue, also being the southeast corner of lot 12 of the W.C.
Culp Estate (Plat Book 11 Page 17), thence with the western line of the right-of-way of the undeveloped
Cable Street the following 3 calls: North 04 degrees 24 minutes 46 seconds East to an existing ron pipe
found 3” above ground level at 102.26’ {common corner of lots 12 & 13), North 04 degrees 24 minutes
46 seconds East to an existing iron pipe found 1” above ground level at 99.86" (common corner of lots
13 & 14), North 04 degrees 24 minutes 46 seconds East to an existing %” iron stake found 3” above
ground level at 99.46’ (for a total distance of 301.58')a corner on the line of REW Homes, LLC (Deed
Book 2496 Page 1096), thence continuing with the northern right-of-way line of the undeveloped Cable
Street North 89 degrees 17 minutes 08 seconds East for a distance of 61.13’ to an existing iron pipe with
grid coordinates of N = 783,317.39, E = 1,680,162.69 (NAD83) thence following the eastern right-of-way
of the undeveloped Cable Street and REW Homes, LLC South 04 degrees 33 minutes 31 seconds East for
a distance of 367.37' to a new iron pipe set, thence with a new right-of-way line at the intersection of
Willowmoore Avenue and Cable Street following a curve to the left with a chord bearing and distance of
North 40 degrees 24 minutes 19 seconds West 85.05’, said curve having a radius of 60’ and a length of
94.52’ to an existing iron pipe, the Point and Place of Beginning.

Said property contains 19,185 square feet or 0.44 acres more or less.

Said property is subject to a new 20’ sewer easement.




9/9/21, 8:41 AM Davidson County Map Output Page

Davidson County GIS

webgis.co.davidson.nc.us/website/DavidsonGIS/printpage.aspx

Parcel Number : 1604300000012 Land Units:

PinId : 6788-03-03-0241 Deed Book:
BECK DARRELL M TRUSTEE

Owaer : PO BOX 2848 Deed Date:
THOMASVILLE NC 27361-2848

Property Address: 700 CABLE ST Account Number:

| Township: 16 Exempt Code:

Building Value: $0 Other Building Value:

Land Value: $12,500 Market Value:

Assessed Value: $12,500 Deferred Value:

Legal Description : P=11-71 L12-14 CABLE ST BK1285-1605

1LT
1285 Pg: 1605

12/21/2001

9058509

$0
$12,500
$0

021

12



9/9/21, 8:41 AM

ire Service Districts

Hydric

Davidson County Map Output Page
Page

Additional Attributes

16.4
THOMASVILLE

64.87
THOMASVILLE

THOMASVILLE
16.33

022

1 inch = 340 feet G

The information contained on this map does not replace information that may be obtained by
consulting the official source of the information. In no event shall Davidson County, NC or the
consultants of Davidson County, NC be liable for any damages, direct or consequential, from the use

of the information contained on this map.

webgis.co.davidson.nc.us/website/DavidsonG|S/printpage.aspx



9/9/21, 8:42 AM Davidson Counfy Map Output Page

Davidson County GIS

webgis.co.davidson.nc.us/website/DavidsonGIS/printpage.aspx

Parcel Number : 1604400600002 Land Units:

Pin Id : 6788-03-03-3162 Deed Book:
BECK DARRELL M TRUSTEE

Owner : ?g%%igl;gm LEES Deed Date:
THOMASVILLE NC 27361

Property Address: 401 UNITY ST Account Number:

Township: 16 Exempt Code:

Building Value: $145,060 Other Building Value:

Land Value: $159,600 Market Value:

Assessed Value: $331,400 Deferred Value:

Legal Description : L2 BK1201-130881434-929 UNITY ST

9.5 AC
1434 Pg: 0929

07/03/2003

9228016

$26,740
$331,400
$0

23

1/2



9/9/21, 8:42 AM

Fire Service Districts

Soil Name
Type
Percent Sl
Eydric
unicipal Boundary
Name
SQ Miles

Davidson County Map Output Page Page 024

Additional Attributes

16.4
THOMASVILLE

64.87
THOMASVILLE

THOMASVILLE
16.33

1 inch = 340 feet G

The information contained on this map does not replace information that may be obtained by
consulting the official source of the information. In no event shall Davidson County, NC or the
consultants of Davidson County, NC be liable for any damages, direct or consequential, from the use

of the information contained on this map.

webgis .co.davidgon.nc.us/website/DavidsonGIS/printpage.aspx



Limited Liability Company Page 025

Legal Name
R.E.W. Homes, LLC

Information

Sosld: 1338640

Status: Current-Active

Date Formed: 9/18/2013

Citizenship: Domestic

Annual Report Due Date: April 15th
Registered Agent: Winslow, Robert E.

Addresses
Principal Office Reg Office Reg iviailing Mailing
432 Vine Dr. 432 Vine Dr. 432 Vine Dr. PO Box 182

Lexington, NC 27292 Lexington, NC 27292 Lexington, NC 27292 Wallburg, NC 27373

Company Officials

All LLCs are managed by their managers pursuant to N.C.G.S. 57D-3-20.
Manager
Robert E. Winslow
PO Box 182
Wallburg NC 27373



Davidson County, NC - Basic Search

Davidson County Home

Basic Search Real Estate Search Tax Bill Search Sales Search  Help

Property Information Search Resuits
To vlew summary data click the owner name. To view the Property Record Card click on PRC within the appropriate gridview line.

Owner Name Co-Owner Property Address Land Data Parcel Number PIN# Tax Year PRC
CRANFORD TOMMY DALE 602 CABLE ST 1.0000 LT 16064000A00DSA 6778-04-92-7016 2022 PRC
C/0 GLENNA PARSONS 604 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0005B 6778-04-92-7150 2022 PRC
NATIONAL LOAN INVESTORS LP 604 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0005B 6778-04-92-7150 2022 PRC
SKEEN STEPHANIE 605 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0050 677B-04-91-8915 2022 PRC
COLE STEPHANIE G 606 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0005C 6778-04-92-8107 2022 PRC
SKEEN STEPHANIE 607 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0010 6778-04-92-8061 2022 PRC
GARDNER STEPHANIE R 609 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0011 6778-04-92-9016 2022 PRC
DEAN JERRY 611 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0012 6778-04-92-9162 2022 PRC
HILL CHRIS L 612 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000017 6778-04-92-8259 2022 PRG
HILL MICHELE B 612 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000017 6778-04-92-8259 2022 PRC
SECU*RE INC 613 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 16064000A0013 6788-03-02-0148 2022 PRC
HILL CHRIS LOGAN 614 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000018 6778-04-92-9329 2022 PRC
HILL MICHELE B 614 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000018 6778-04-92-9329 2022 PRC
BEARD ALLEN 616 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000001 6778-04-92-9540 2022 PRC
BEARD TERRY LYNN 616 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000001 6778-04-92-9540 2022 PRC
PORTER DANIEL JOSEPH 620 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000002 6778-04-92-9652 2022 PRC
RABEL-PORTER KAREN L 620 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000002 6778-04-92-9652 2022 PRC
MCCRARY ELLA 622 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000003 6778-04-92-9750 2022 ERC
MCCRARY RAYMOND F 622 CABLE ST 0.0000'LT 1604300000003 6778-04-92-9750 2022 BRC
BERNAL SANTA CRUZ BELLO 624 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000004 6778-04-92-9851 2022 PRC
MEDRANO GILBERTO GONZA| 624 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000004 6778-04-92-9851 2022 PRC
MCCRARY ELLA 626 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000005 6778-04-92-9951 2022 BRC
MCCRARY RAYMOND F 626 CABLE ST 0.0000 LT 1604300000005 6778-04-92-9951 2022 PRC
R E W HOMES LLC 700 CABLE 571 22.6900 LT 1604300000012 6788-03-02-2870 2022 PRC

<< Return to Basic Search

All information on this site is prepared for the inventory of real property found within Davidson County. All data s compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, and other public records and data. Users of this data are hereby notified that the aforementioned public information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information. Davidson County, its employees and agents make no warranty as to the correctness or
accuracy of the information set forth on this site whether express or implied, in fact or in law, including without limitation the implied
warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular use.
If you have any questions about the Real Estate data displayed on this website please contact the Davidson County Tax Office at (336) 242-
2160
For technical problems related to this website, please contact (336) 242-2160

1.7.91



Page 027

MINUTES FOR THE THOMASVILLE CITY COUNCIL BRIEFING MEETING ON
MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2022 AT 6:00 PM AT 7003 BALLPARK ROAD,
THOMASVILLE, NC.

Elected officials in attendance: Mayor Raleigh York, Jr.; Mayor Pro Tempore Doug Hunt,
and Council Members Wendy Sellars, Lisa Shell, Jeannette Shepherd, and Hunter Thrift.
Council Member Ron Bratton had an excused absence. Council Member Payton
Williams was not present. A quorum was present.

The following staff members attended the meeting: City Manager Michael Brandt;
Finance Director Thomas Avant; Police Chief Mark Kattner; and City Clerk Wendy Martin

1. Call to Order — Mayor Raleigh York, Jr. called the meeting of the Thomasville City
Council to order.

2. Additions and Deletions to the Agenda

City Manager Brandt asked that Council add the following items:
3. B. Proclamation — Public Health Month
6. E. Consideration of Memorial Day Road Closure Ordinance

He also asked that the Closed Session be moved to item 7 and Committee Reports
be moved to 8.

Council Member Thrift moved that Council approve the agenda as amended. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt. No discussion. Motion unanimously
approved 5 — 0,

3. Proclamations and Recognitions to be presented on March 21, 2022

A. Women'’s History Month (March) — to be presented by Council Member Sellars
B. Public Health Month (April) — to be presented to Lillian Koontz, Director of the
Davidson County Health Department

4. Public Forum on March 21, 2022 — Citizens will be given two minutes to speak on any
topic at the Council Meeting.

The following items were put on the consent agenda by the Council members for
consideration on March 21, 2022:

5. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Briefing Meeting on 02/14/22

B. Approval of the Minutes of the Council Meeting on 02/21/22
c. Consideration of Capital Project Ordinance — North Hamby Creek Outfall Phase |l|

1




Page 028

D. Consideration of Budget Amendment — Insurance Proceeds: Police Vehicle
Collision, Water/Sewer Fund, Beautification’s Christmas Tree due to Wind
Damage

E. Consideration of Memorial Day Parade Route Road Closure Ordinance

The following items were put on the regular agenda by the Council members for
consideration on March 21, 2022:

6. Regular Agenda

A. Consideration of a Resolution to Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider a Petition
for the Closure of a Portion of Cable Street

B. Consideration of First Amendment to Option and Land Lease Agreement with
American Towers LLC to Extend Their Ground Lease

7. Closed Session — Personnel

8. Committee Reports and Appointments, Mayor's Report and Appointments, City
Manager’s Report, City Attorney’s Report

Reports will be given at the Council meeting on March 21, 2022.

9. Closed Session for Personnel on March 21, 2022

10. Additional ltems

11. Adjournment — Council Member Sellars moved to adjourn. Council Member Shell
seconded the motion. No discussion. Motion unanimously approved 5 — 0.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



Page 029

MINUTES FOR THE THOMASVILLE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING
ON MONDAY, MARCH 14, 2022 AT 6:30 PM AT 7003 BALLPARK ROAD,
THOMASVILLE, NC.

Elected officials in attendance: Mayor Raleigh York, Jr.; Mayor Pro Tempore Doug Hunt,
and Council Members Wendy Sellars, Lisa Shell, Jeannette Shepherd, Hunter Thrift and
Payton Williams. Council Member Ron Bratton had an excused absence. A quorum was

present.

The following staff members attended the meeting: City Manager Michael Brandt and
City Clerk Wendy Martin

1. Call to Order — Mayor Raleigh York, Jr. called the meeting of the Thomasville City
Council to order. He explained that each applicant would have 15 minutes to make
their presentations to Council.

2. Presentations were made by the following Outside Agency Fund Applicants:

A. Thomasville City Schools - Dr. Cate Gentry, Superintendent

(19.5 cent tax rate ($1,660,000) requested — no change from last year)

Dr. Gentry advised that in 2020 and 2021, the City of Thomasville allotted a
supplemental school tax of 19.5-cents to the Thomasville City Schools (TCS). In
2021, TCS received $1,613,198 from the City. They are budgeted to receive
$1,658,753 in 2022. She asked that the City maintain the same 19.5-cent tax rate,
with an approximate budgeted tax value of $1,660,000.

She said TCS is funded locally by the County of Davidson and the City of
Thomasville. She explained that Thomasville pays for approximately one-third of
their local funding, and this funding pays for:

teacher supplements (to keep teacher salaries at a competitive rate with other
counties);

the Jr. ROTC program (paid for by local funds and U.S. Army allotments);
supplies and rentals for graduation ceremonies;

salaries of local employees, most of whom are school-based treasurers, data
managers and clerical and administrative support at the central office;

athletic programs, supplements, supplies and activity buses;

utilities, insurance, telecommunications;

stipends and development opportunities for the School Board;

legal and financial auditing;

testing and accountability requirements;

district data management;

Finch Auditorium; and

school vehicles.

Dr. Gentry advised that the State budget passed in November of 2021 required
that all school employees make a minimum of $13 per hour, with an increase to

1



Page 030

$15 per hour by July 1, 2022. She said TCS supports that, because they want to
attract strong employees. However, the State funding does not cover that
increase, so the School System is going to have to find ways to fund that
increase.

She also referred to page 3 of the handout and stated that there had been a 70%
increase in retirement and a 42% ($2,205) increase in hospitalization insurance
coverage over the past 10 years. She added that the local employees receive the
same pay as the federal and state employees.

Dr. Gentry said TCS serves students from other schools. For example, the ROTC
program has students from East Davidson and Ledford, because those schools
do not have that program.

She said ESSR (Elementary and Secondary Schools Recovery) funding for K-12
public schools from the American Recovery Plan has been helpful, but it “has a
shelf life,” so she asked that the City continue to help TCS be sustainable over the
long run.

Part D. of the TCS application includes a 5-year review of funding sources. They
receive funding from the Federal, State, County and City governments.

In June of 2018, when she became Superintendent, TCS was $1.2M in debt. That
debt has been nearly paid off. It is down to $33,000 now, and it should be paid off
by the end of this year. They have done that by tightening up with personnel and
spending.

In addition, they receive some private funds through grants. They recently won a
$500,000 competitive 3-year grant from the State to pay for teacher development
and leadership skills. They won a $366,000 grant from the Department of Justice
for some security projects (upgrading security cameras and getting a more-secure
keyless entry system) Also, they receive some donations from the ABC Board for
drug and alcohol education and United Methodist Church for the homeless
population; and they get grants to promote student and teacher wellness.

Council Member Hunt asked how many students are in the TCS system. Dr.
Gentry said there were 2,233, as of October. She added that about 25 graduated
since then.

Council Member Shepherd asked if the schools were fully staffed. Dr. Gentry said
all teacher assistant positions are filled, but there are 8 teacher vacancies
currently. They have had 8 — 11 vacancies all year.

Council Member Sellars asked how much we spend on each student. Dr. Gentry
explained that the Federal rate per student is $530 (not including the ESSR funds,
since that is not sustainable); the State pays approximately $9,000 per student;
and Davidson County allotted $1,215 per student this year; (Dr. Gentry added that



Page 031

is in the bottom five in the State of NC, and it has been for several years.) Michael
Brandt calculated the City contribution to be about $716 per student.

Council Member Hunt asked if the total budget included funds from federal, state,
county and city. Dr. Gentry said it did. She explained that non-ESSR Federal
money is based on the needs of the student population (free/reduced lunch
population, etc.) It's supplemental money to account for discrepancies in other
areas of funding.

Council Member Sellars asked if all the students still received free lunches. Dr.
Gentry said all the schools in the State currently receive free lunches. She thinks
that will end at some point, but TCS qualifies for a “Community Eligibility
Program”, and it is in the second year of a five-year term, so students will continue
to receive free lunches at least until that term expires.

Council Member Williams asked what percentage of students were at or below
poverty level. Dr. Gentry explained that due to the Community Eligibility Program,
students don’t currently have to fill out applications for free/reduced Iunch,
because based on the needs of the overall community and services within the
community (such as EBT cards, SNAP benefits, etc.) ALL kids qualified - because
of the community need. However, she estimated that approximately 70% of the
elementary students are at or below poverty level, with 62% at the middle school
level, and 60% at the high school level.

Council Member Sellars asked what percentage of students in the TCS school
system do not live within the TCS district, and whether TCS receives funding from
those other districts. Dr. Gentry said as of October, 39 students came from
outside of the district - that they know of. However, 37 TCS district students went
to other districts for school. This was mostly because teachers’ children follow
them to their district. However, she said funding does follow the child.

Council Member Thrift said, “It's excellent that you've taken care of the debt that
you've inherited. I'm sure that was difficult.” Dr. Gentry said they've worked hard
to it. She added that their goal in the next three years is to get to the point where
$1.3M is three months of spending, because that's a responsible savings rate.
She said maintaining the current 19.5 cents from the City would help get them
through the next cycle.

. Davidson County Economic Development Commission - Steve Jackson,
Chairman ($50,000 requested — no change from last year)

Mr. Jackson said the EDC's job is to recruit industry, create jobs and build the tax
base.

The EDC is requesting the same amount of funds as last year, and Mr. Jackson
said, “We are looking to continue what we've been doing.”

He explained that the funds they receive from the City helps pay for:
3



Page 032

- the EDC’s website, which has become the main way people access information
about our community since COVID. He said it drives a lot of traffic our way; and

- the Davidson/Davie Apprenticeship Consortium (prominently featuring Mohawk,
a big part of Thomasville and Davidson County). *Note: the EDC manages the
books for this consortium.

Some projects the EDC has been involved in from 2019 - 2022 include $202M in
expansions from Mohawk, Minnewawa ($3M expansion), and Brasscraft ($17M).
About 300 jobs have resulted from those expansions alone.

In the past three years, $286.5M worth of EDC projects have directly benefited
Thomasville, and there are currently three new prospects worth a total of $48M
that could bring about 150 more jobs to Thomasville.

Mr. Jackson said the EDC's efforts have come a long way, and he thanked
Council for their support in that.

Council Member Thrift asked Mr. Jackson how the EDC brings businesses to
Thomasville.

Mr. Jackson said the Davidson County EDC proactively pursues these
opportunities. They don't just wait for businesses to contact them. They have built
a relationship with the State Economic Development office, and they use them as
a source. They also are well known in the consultant community. It is consultants
who drive these projects. They sort through and figure out which are legitimate
prospects for Thomasville and which are not.

He said, “There are many, many sources of interests that come to us when we
respond to a request or we generate a request. Then we talk about the qualities of
our community, the number of employees, and the education systems we have in
place to facilitate jobs.”

. Historic Preservation Commission - Scott Ford, Chairman
($2,000 requested — new applicant this year)

Mr. Ford requested $2,000 on behalf of the Historic Preservation Commission “for
mostly educational purposes.”

He said the HPC is in place to preserve, protect and oversee restorations in
historic properties and landmarks located in the City’'s historic districts. He said,
“Our goal is to educate and evolve the public in responsible curation of our city’s
treasured buildings, homes and landmarks.”

The HPC is undergoing change with new members. They want to educate
homeowners of historic properties and the general public. They want to: make
contact with the residents of Thomasville's historic districts to help inform them of
the special rules for their special homes; hold workshops; give tours of the historic

4



Page 033

properties; and be more visible and accessible at Thomasville’'s public events,
such as Everybody's Day — perhaps in some matching polo shirts or t-shirts, and
perhaps selling items as a fundraiser.

These funds would help them to elevate the appearance, attractiveness and the
spirit of Thomasville’s beautiful historic districts.

The Commission wants to distribute door hangers or brochures highlighting
Thomasville’s historic districts and educating the property owners there of the
properties and boundaries and raise awareness of the Commission’s new
“standards” (which are not just guidelines anymore.) He said they want to do
some mapping so people know which properties are in the Historic districts.

It also wants to host DIY workshops and keep some Commission members
educated with CE credits.

The Commission would also like to pay a contractor to consolidate and scan their
historical records and pictures, so they can be more accessible to the general
public on their website. Mr. Ford mentioned that this would be helpful since the
Commission no longer has many of the elder members of the group like Bill
Colona, who used to be such a valuable resource.

Mr. Ford said they do have some funds (~$2,500) that they have raised over the
years, but they haven't spent it all because they didn’'t want to have empty coffers.

Council Member Hunt asked if they have any other sources of income. Mr. Ford
said they do raffles and outside book sales at Everybody’s Day and Spring Daze.

Council Member Thrift, former HPC Member, said one of their biggest problems
back then was educating people who moved into the district, so this was exciting
to him.

Mr. Ford said this new membership doesn’t want to sit around and wait for people
to come to them with CIA’s. They are enthused and want to “lift this little town up”
like Salisbury did. Their historic properties were dilapidated, but they've turned it
around. They now have an historic tour in October that brings in probably 10,000
visitors. He said, “The homes here, for the most part, aren’'t as grandiose and as
fine as some of the bigger homes in Salisbury, but we've got some stuff to show
off.”

He added that Thomasville homes have stories to tell, too. For example, the plans
for Trinity College (later, Duke University) were drawn up in the living room in his
house, which is also known as the Hoover House.

Council Member Williams appreciated his excitement about the projects he was
talking about. She asked if the DIY workshops would generate revenue. He was
hopeful that they would. He said they have paid for their members to go to various
workshops for their CE credits that they need to stay accredited. He hopes to host

5



Page 034

some of those workshops to generate revenue. He said after paying for the expert
to conduct the class, it would hopefully more than pay for itself.

Council Member Sellars asked if the educational door hangers would just be for
the people who live in the historic districts. Mr. Ford said they would, because
they could really benefit from the information the most. However, the same
information also would be available to everyone on their website and at
Everybody’'s Day and other public events, as well as at the DIY workshops.

He hopes to have a professional set up the website to make it user friendly.

D. Arts Davidson - Amanda Murphy Feliciano, Executive Director

Ms. Feliciano said the amount requested would support the Sunset Sounds
concert, which they are trying to bring back. She said, “This year, we kind of
wanted to start small and just do one night and see how things go, since we're
just kind of getting our legs back underneath us coming out of all the COVID
restrictions.”

She said she has been in conversations with Cameron at Tourism and with
PACE, and the event is growing a little bit. Ms. Feliciano wants to work with
Tourism and have them push the event out and bring some people in.

It could be more than a concert. She is looking into having some vendor events
with Arts Davidson artists — maybe doing demos and/or selling their art.

She met with PACE and discussed having artists at the Emporium, to spread it
more out into the city than just PACE Park.

Ms. Feliciano said they would like to spread out and do more things in
Thomasville.

Council Member Thrift said Arts Davidson struggled for a couple of years. He
asked if she thought they were doing well now that they restructured. She said the
previous board consisted of long-time members who needed a break. However,
they are still volunteering and helping out. They also added a new employee.

She added that they've had income from CARES Funds, Grassroots funds and
ARPA funds. She said these funds are recharging them and bringing more
programming and more opportunities.

Council Member Shepherd asked if everything proposed was already set up. Ms.
Feliciano said everything in the packet she submitted “is set up and will happen,
as far as bands and all that. The other pieces we're working to see if that's a
possibility.”

E. City Beautification - Carol Brown, Chairperson




Page 035

Ms. Brown said the Committee was established in 1979 to “have flowers planted
in the City in the spring and fall and to purchase any decorations for the town,
including banners and Christmas.”

She became chair person in 2004. Since then, they have expanded their mission
and goals to include many more projects, and they have continued making
improvements, upkeep and any repairs as needed.

They try to do a new project each year, such as:

refurbishing Will Harbor Park (corner of Main and Randolph) with plants, a
walkway, benches, and arbors;

developing John Hauss Park (Salem Street) with plants, a walkway;

developing Fairgrove Park (at the entrance to Fairgrove Forest);

totally renovating the Downtown Fountain (Nona Welborn Park) in 2007,
including adding benches and trash cans. (The cost of that renovation was
$40,000. Finch Foundation paid for half of it);

repainting the lamp posts and clock tower;

adding rockwork around the Fountain to replace deteriorating brick;

maintaining the flower beds at City Hall and added planters;

added flower beds at the Parks and Rec’s main office;

added a new brick welcome sign at the Park and Ride lot on 109 North;

added new Welcome to Thomasville letters on the existing brick signs;
purchased a rock sign weighing over a ton at Veteran's Memorial Park;
replaced lights on top of the buildings and trees with LED bulbs and replace
them as needed;

they've had the Pepsi mural on John Thomas Way, the original Big Chair mural
on Salem Street, murals around the building on Trade Street;

HVAC system at Trade Street;

plant about 475 flats of flowers a year and 3,500 tulip bulbs in the fall around
the City, (1,500 alone goes around the Big Chair), the Fountain, many parks,
welcome signs, Depot and City Hall, and now Finch Field during the Hi-Toms’
season, per a request from Greg (Suire). Ms. Brown said the cost of materials
has increased tremendously;

In 2014, they purchased a 26’ Christmas tree, lighted snowflakes and banners.
In January of 2022, the Christmas tree was damaged beyond repair by heavy
winds, so they purchased a new one. (This was paid for, in part, by a $5,000
donation from the Finch Foundation that was going to be used for the old Belk
Christmas window display. The display is an ongoing expense with mechanical
motors. 5 were sent to NY this year for repairs at a cost of $5,000);

This spring, they got a quote of $4,200 for mulch to go at the George Hunley
Underpass;

They participate in Everybody's Day and National Night Out; and

They speak about beautifications at local clubs and organizations;

She said that the money left in their account will be used up with spring planting.
She said, “We are very resourceful with the funds that we are given. I'm very
proud of every dollar that has been spent.”

7



Page 036

She added that the volunteers work very hard to beautify the City. She invited
Council to attend the committee meetings and to participate in the monthly litter
sweeps, which have been occurring for six years.

The Council Members thanked Carol for the Committee’s hard work, and they
commented on how beautiful it all is.

. PACE Group - Paxton Taylor, President
(Requesting $33,000)

Ms. Taylor said the Thomasville City Council has helped PACE achieve their
mission of revitalizing Downtown in the past through Street Scapes, building
restorations and fagade grant programs.

She said about 85% of the requested funds would be used to do five fagade
grants. She explained that in 2019, they spent $75,000 on fagade grants for 15
different locations. After that, they worked on the building restoration at the Palace
Theater. That is now up for sale, so they have time to get back to their fagade
program.

The other 15% of the requested funds would go to other projects throughout the
year, such as the annual shrimp boil, art projects, and community events with
Tourism, Beautification, Arts Davidson County and Thomasville Parks and Rec. It
would also help with maintenance and operating expenses.

Council Member Williams asked how much a typical facade grant is. Ms. Taylor
said the amounts differed in the past, but she thinks they're going to set an
allotted amount this time. Mayor York said the largest one that he could recall was
$5,000. It was a matching grant, so the business owner also put in $5,000 in
facade repairs.

Council Member Sellars asked how long the Palace had been on the market. Ms.
Taylor said it had been for sale a little over a month. She added that they are
getting promotion work out now about their whole process, and are getting the
listing out there. Ms. Taylor invited Council to come tour the property.

. Chair _City Multicultural Committee - Jacquez Johnson, Chairman
(Requesting $6,420)

Mr. Johnson said many local governments across the state and nation are making
a commitment to advancing equity and inclusion. This includes everything from
forming advocacy groups and gathering data to creating new policies and
procedures.



Page 037

He said Thomasville is composed of a diverse variety of residents, including non-
English speaking residents and populations of many racial, ethnic and cultural
backgrounds.

He defined diversity as a range of human differences, and inclusion as the
acceptance and respect of those differences. Inclusion should apply to people of
all races, ages, ethnicities, genders, sexual orientations, physical abilities, political
beliefs, religious beliefs, and social and economic status, etc.

He said the Multicultural Committee is asking for $6,420 to accomplish the
following things:

1. First, they want to promote at least one annual cultural event. He said they are
excited to be joining other community partners for their first Juneteenth
celebration on June 14" — 15%,

2. They also plan to do meet-and-greets with movie nights. It would be different
than the ones run by Parks and Rec. They are going to be choosing very
inclusive movies.

3. They also are asking for $200 for hosting webinars on eliminating racism
called Diversity Dialogues. This will give them the opportunity to have very
needed conversations and dialogue with the community about diversity and
inclusion and how to address challenges in our community. This will be
recorded and shared on social media. That will spark those necessary
conversations to build inclusivity.

4. Participation in Spring Daze and Everybody's Day to make sure they are
visible.

Council Member Thrift recognized that the Multicultural Committee has plans for
Juneteenth and contribute to the MLK Black History Month, but he asked if they
had plans for any other cultures/ethnicities in Thomasville. Mr. Johnson said they
are hoping to have a Hispanic Heritage Festival in September.

Council Member Hunt asked him if the Committee had any funds left over from
last year. Mr. Johnson said they do. Some would be used for the candle light vigil
this weekend. He said this was an opportunity for them to reach out to the
different faiths in Thomasville to properly grieve about Covid losses as a
community. City Manager Brandt said as of March 1%, there was $4,800
remaining in the Multicultural Committee account.

Council Member Thrift asked what else those funds were going to be used for. Mr.
Johnson said the Committee members would be put through DEI (diversity, equity
and inclusion) training.

Council Member Sellars asked if an organization would be hosting the webinars
on racism. Mr. Johnson said as chairman of the committee, he would be having a
conversation with committee members Dr. Tanisha Watkins and Dr. Candace
Jackson. They will be helping to craft those conversations and questions to figure
out concrete solutions to some of the equity problems in our community.

9



Page 038

Council Member Sellars asked if the Committee was planning on buying their own
license for the cultural movie night. Mr. Johnson said $1,500 of the requested
funds would allow them to cover the cost of the licensing without having to partner
with other groups.

. Thomasville Rescue Squad - Rusty Goins, Chief (Requesting $40,000)

Chief Goins said they typically receive $25,000 from the City of Thomasville, but
with costs escalating, they need more money. (i.e. gloves have gone from $8 a
box to $40 a box, not to mention fuel, which they sometimes pay for out of their
own pockets.)

They provide service, rescue (from truck accidents to high level accidents to
collapse). He said about 20% are technical rescues, which include high level,
confined space, water rescue. They also have a national trainer who has given
them some equipment/gear, but it is getting old.

He said they are all volunteers, and everything they do is free of charge for the
community.

This year, they've started going more out into the community and are getting more
involved. They are going to do some open houses to bring the community in. They
will let organizations use their building for the benefit of the community.

He also hopes to get more youth interested in volunteering. He does have some
juniors, but “volunteerism is a dying art.”

His father-in-law started the Thomasville Rescue Squad in 1969. He hopes to
build it up, by adding fundraisers such as Bingo night, CPR classes (for only $30,
the price charged by the American Heart Association for the card), and spaghetti
dinners, and they plan to apply for grants.

He said they have improved their response times, and they have improved their
relationship with the Thomasville Fire Department. They also work tightly with the
County Ambulance Service, which is having staffing issues, so many weekends
they only have one of their two ambulances staffed in Thomasville. Thomasville
Rescue Squad fills in for them and fills that gap when they are needed.

Council Member Shepherd asked how many volunteers they have. Chief Goins
said there are 40 volunteers on the roster, but only about 14 are active.

Council Member Williams asked if there are any women volunteers on the Rescue
Squad. Chief Goins said there are 10 or 12 women on the roster, but it is open to
everyone who wants to do it. He said some of the women are his better
responders.

10



Page 039

Council Member Thrift asked if they run every medical call. Chief Goins said the
CAD system in Lexington delegates who is paged. It's according to the type of
call. They can’t do them all, due to lack of funding for fuel. If they don’t run i,
somebody else takes the call. He said the Thomasville Fire Department handles
most of the traffic accidents and stuff like that. The Rescue Squad mostly helps
EMS with house calls. He estimated that they are able to run 40% of the calls they
are given in the City of Thomasville, give or take, depending on variables.

Council Member Sellars asked Chief Goins how he plans to get more young
volunteers. He said they make personal visits to high schools and the community
college’s EMT school to talk to the guidance counsellors and teachers to get
leads.

Chief Goins summarized that the requested funds would help them modernize
some of their equipment. He said they've been taking care of their equipment, but
it is old. For example, their heavy rescue truck is a 1971 model.

Council Member Sellars asked if they get funding from anywhere else besides the
City of Thomasville. He answered that Davidson County gives them around
$20,000-$25,000. But he said it costs them $100,000 - $105,000 to keep the
doors open.

Martin Luther King, Jr. Social Action Committee - Dr. George B. Jackson,
Chairman (Requesting $1,000)

Dr. Jackson said since 2001, the Social Action Committee has presented an 8-
day, 13 event celebration of the Martin Luther King, Jr. National Holiday. He said,
“Our purpose is to continue to promote the unfinished work of Martin Luther King,
Jr.

He said since 2004 they have presented a scholarship award program called the
Martin Luther King Oratorical Contest which gifts students from around the
Piedmont Triad an opportunity to receive cash awards for sharing their oratorical
skills to continue Dr. King’s oratorical legacy. The first scholarship was $500. In
2022, the scholarship totals reached $20,050.

For the past 15 years, Thomasville has given the SAC $500 per year to
supplement the scholarship offerings and other various community programs,
such as their “Get the Shot” program this year.

Many media outlets attend this important event, which shows good things coming
out of Thomasyville, the Seat of Global Opportunity.

He said they have always been true to their word and have delivered what they
promote. They give scholarships to students from various high schools in the
Piedmont Triad. They bring their families from as far away as Danville, VA and
Columbia, SC to Thomasville to be a part of this event.

11



Page 040

He said, “Each year we ask for $1,000 in support for this event. Each year we
receive $500. So we just keep asking for $1,000 and hope one day that point
might get across.”

3. Adjournment — Council Member Sellars moved to adjourn. Council Member Shell
seconded the motion. No discussion. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk

12



Page 041

MINUTES FOR THE THOMASVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING ON MONDAY,
MARCH 21, 2022 AT 6:00 PM AT 7003 BALLPARK ROAD, THOMASVILLE, NC.

Elected officials in attendance: Mayor Raleigh York, Jr.; Mayor Pro Tempore Doug Hunt,
and Council Members Wendy Sellars, Lisa Shell, Jeannette Shepherd, Hunter Thrift and
Payton Williams. Council Member Ron Bratton had an excused absence.

The following staff members attended the meeting: City Manager Michael Brandt; City
Attorney Misti Whitman; Police Chief Mark Kattner; Assistant MIS Director Damon
Hartwell; PC Technician James Raulston; and City Clerk Wendy Martin

1.

Call to Order — Mayor Raleigh York, Jr. called the meeting of the Thomasville City
Council to order.

Additions and Deletions to the Agenda

City Manager Michael Brandt asked that Council move the closed session to item 6
and change it as follows:

6. Closed Session — Personnel and Economic Development; and add

7.A. Consideration of Approval of Resolution for the City of Thomasville's
Application for Industrial Development Fund Utility Account Grant Funding
For Project M

Council Member Thrift moved to approve the agenda as revised. Council Member
Sellars seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

Proclamations and Recognitions

A. Women'’s History Month (March) — Council Member Sellars read this Proclamation
for all women - in recognition of their great contributions in our lives and in our
society.

Mayor York pointed out that Thomasville now has a majority of women on the City
Council for the first time ever.

B. Public Health Month (April) — Council Member Wiliams presented this
Proclamation to Lilian Koontz, Director of the Davidson County Health
Department.

Ms. Koontz thanked Mayor York and the Council for their support on behalf of the
100 employees at the Health Department who have been working extra hard the
last couple of years. She was glad to be able to gather together in person. She
reminded everyone, “Your health is your wealth.”

Public Forum — Brandi Fur spoke regarding mask policy at TCS. Her handout is on
file with the City Clerk and is available upon request.

Consent Agenda
A. Approval of the Minutes of the Briefing Meeting on 02/14/22

1



Page 042

B. Approval of the Minutes of the Council Meeting on 02/21/22

C. Consideration of Capital Project Ordinance — North Hamby Creek Outfall
Phase lll Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project

This project was funded with both a Wastewater Reserve Fund Grant and
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan, administered by the N.C. Dept. of
Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure.

This ordinance adjusts the capital project budget to accurately reflect the revised
construction improvement costs as a result of approved change orders, which
have increased the overall construction cost.

$226,517 will be transferred from the project's Contingency line item to the
Construction Improvements line item to appropriately account for the increase in
the construction cost. The change orders do not change the total project funding
amount. Contingency funding was built into the original project budget for this
specific purpose. The remaining project contingency balance is $65,214 with this
adjustment.

This ordinance will supersede the last project ordinance approved in December
2019.

D. Consideration of Budget Amendment — Insurance Proceeds: Police Vehicle
Collision, Water/Sewer Fund, Beautification's Christmas Tree due to Wind

Damage

The amendment appropriates $22,792 in insurance proceeds in the General Fund
for a police vehicle crash and $27,000 from Contingency for the increased cost of
street lighting at the 1-85 and NC-109 Interchange, bringing the General Fund
Contingency balance to $163,906.

In the Water/Sewer Fund, $2,014 of insurance proceeds are appropriated.

In the Beautification Fund, it appropriates insurance proceeds totaling $8,617 and
donations totaling $520 for replacement of the Beautification Christmas tree. The
Beautification Committee is a volunteer committee whose members are appointed
by City Council and whose financing is accounted for in a fund separate from
general city funds. The committee requested donations from the general public to
replace the Christmas Tree that was damaged by wind.

E. Consideration of Memorial Day Parade Route Road Closure Ordinance

The Memorial Day Committee is happy to announce that their parade is back this
year and is scheduled for Memorial Day, Monday, May 30". The parade will take
its regular route down East and West Main Streets to Salem Street, north to
Stadium Drive, ending on Emma St.



Page 043

Council Member Thrift moved to approve the items on the Consent Agenda. Council
Member Hunt seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

6. Closed Session — Personnel and Economic Development

Council Member Sellars moved that Council go into closed session for Personnel and
Economic Development matters. Council Member Wiliams seconded. Motion
unanimously approved 6 — 0. No action was taken in closed session.

7. Reqgular Agenda.

A. Consideration of Approval of Resolution for the City of Thomasville’s Application
for Industrial Development Fund Utility Account Grant Funding for Project M

Michael Walser asked Council to approve this Resolution for Industrial
Development Funding through the Department of Commerce for a proposed
water and sewer project totaling $2.2 M.

$1.1 M would come from Golden Leaf; $275,000 would come from the company;
and $825,000 would come from an Industrial Development Fund (from the
Department of Commerce.)

Council Member Hunt moved to approve this Resolution. Council Member
Shepherd seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

B. Consideration of a Resolution to Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider a Petition
for the Closure of a Portion of Cable Street

City Manager Brandt explained that this request would allow a public hearing
regarding the closure of a portion of Cable Street. The petitioner owns both sides
of the unopened right-of-way and is requesting the closure of the road. The public
hearing will be at the next regular city council meeting on April 18", 6PM. The
petition for closure will run in the newspaper the next four weeks.

Mayor York advised that this is a portion of a street that is not currently open. It
has never been developed.

Council Member Thrift moved to approve this Resolution. Council Member
Williams seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

C. Consideration of First Amendment to Option and Land Lease Agreement with
American Towers LLC to Extend Their Ground Lease

City Manager Brandt said American Tower requested that we make an
amendment to an Agreement that we've had since 1993. This will extend the
lease from 2023 to 2038 in three 5-year renewal periods.

The City will receive $15,000 upfront when we sign the lease, and beginning in
June 2023, the City will receive $1,000 per month. Every 3 years the rate will



Page 044
increase 15%. In addition, the City will receive $200 per month for any co-location
sub-leases on the tower. This is the tower located at the golif course.

Council Member Hunt moved to renew the lease with American Towers LLC.
Council Member Shell seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.

8. Committee Reports and Appointments, Mayor's Report and Appointments, City

10.

Manager’'s Report, City Attorney’s Report

On behalf of the Personnel Committee, Council Member Thrift moved to appoint the
following volunteers:

Tourism Commission - Andrew Clement, At Large
Multicultural Committee - Kelly Johnson to fill Milton Pena
Pacheco’s unexpired term
Council Member Williams seconded. Motion unanimously approved 6 — 0.
Council Member Williams thanked the Beautification Committee for all the beautiful

flowers around the City. She also invited everyone to attend their litter sweep the
second Saturday of each month, beginning at the clock tower.

Mayor York met with Miss Thomasville and Miss Thomasville’'s Outstanding Teen.
They both are looking forward to attending many of our upcoming events, including
the Memorial Day events. He also had the honor and privilege of swearing in two new
police officers.

City Manager Brandt asked everyone to watch for children and other pedestrians/
bicyclists walking or riding on our streets as the weather begins to warm up. He said
there have been a number of accidents recently.

He also announced that three new restaurants will be opening in Thomasville soon:

¢ Dairy’O at the intersection of Liberty Dr/Randolph Street;
e the Captain's Table at 908 Randolph Street; and
¢ Tortilleria el Tio at 203 National Highway (formerly Tommy’s BBQ).

City Attorney Misti Whitman said it has been a very busy month, but everything is
running smoothly.

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT - Council Member Sellars moved to adjourn this meeting;
Council Member Shell seconded the motion. No discussion. Motion
unanimously approved 6 — 0.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor



Page 045

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



Page 046

City of Thomasville

Budget Amendment

To:  City Manager

From: Finance Director

Date: 3/31/2022

Re: 2021-2022 General Fund Budget Amendment

This General Fund budget amendment appropriates the city's contribution to the BrassCraft
Manufacturing-Project Viceroy CDBG grant project.

GENERAL FUND

DECREASE APPROPRIATION
010-9010-505-58-00 Contingency $25,000.00

INCREASE APPROPRIATION
010-4110-512-90-65 Contribution to CDBG $25,000.00



Page 047

CITY OF THOMASVILLE
Grant Project Ordinance

BE IT ORDAINED by the Thomasville City Council that, pursuant to Section 13.2 of
Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following Grant Project is
hereby adopted:

Section 1. The project authorized is the BrassCraft Manufacturing/Project Viceroy
CDBG Grant Project described in the work statement contained in the Grant Agreement
between this unit and the North Carolina Department of Commerce and the budget
contained herein.

Section 2. The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the Grant Project
within the terms of the funding agreement, the rules and regulations of the North Carolina
Department of Commerce and the budget contained herein.

Section 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this
project:

065-9215-322-0507 CDBG Building Reuse Grant $500,000.00
065-9215-390-0100 City of Thomasville $ 25,000.00
Total $525,000.00

Section 4. The following expenditures are anticipated to be available to complete this
project:

065-9215-524-7300 Construction Rehabilitation $525,000.00

Section 5. The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Grant Project
Fund sufficient specific detailed accounting records to provide the accounting to the
grantor agency required by the grant agreements and federal and state regulations.

Section 6. Requests for funds should be made in an orderly and timely manner as funds
are obligated and expenses incurred.



Page 048

Section 7. The Finance Officer is directed to report timely on the financial status of each
project element in Section 4 and on the total revenues received or claimed.

Section 8. The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future
costs and revenues on this Grant Project in every budget submission made to this
Council.

Section 9. Copies of this Grant Project Ordinance shall be made available to the Budget
Officer and the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project.

ADOPTED this 18" day of April, 2022

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk



Page 049

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

The North Carolina Department of Commerce (“Commerce”), an agency of the State of
North Carolina (“State™), enters into this Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement
(“Grant Agreement”) with the City of Thomasville (the “Governmental Unit” and, together with
Commerce, the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Assembly (“General Assembly”) has
determined that it is the policy of the State to stimulate economic activity and to create new jobs
for citizens of the State by providing matching grants or loans to specific local governmental
units so as to productively reuse certain buildings and properties or expand rural health care
facilities subject to the requirements of N.C.G.S. §§143B-472.127 and .128; and

WHEREAS, under N.C.G.S. §143B-472.128, the General Assembly created the North
Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority (“Rural Authority™) to review applications for and,
where appropriate, authorize such matching grants or loans, and, under N.C.G.S. §§143B-
472.126 and .127, the General Assembly authorized Commerce to administer such grants or
loans; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §§143B-472.127 and .128, and based on the terms,
conditions and representations in this Grant Agreement’s Exhibits A (Scope of Project), Exhibit
B (Payment Schedule), Exhibit C (Reporting Schedule), Exhibit D (Closeout Schedule/JTob
Requirements), Exhibit E (LBC), Exhibit F (Promissory Note) and Exhibit G (Waiver of
Confidentiality (“Waiver™)), the Rura] Authority has approved a grant (the “Grant™) to the
Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, without limitation, the Rural Authority awarded the Grant: (1) based on the
application filed by the Governmental Unit and any subsequent materials supporting the
application that have been approved of by Commerce in writing, all of which are incorporated by
reference herein; (2) based on the representation in the application that Thomas Mfg Co Inc of
Thomasville (the “Owner”) owns certain real property located at:

1024 Randolph St
Thomasville, NC 27360

in Davidson County, North Carolina (the “Property™); (3) based on Commerce’s Grant
requirements and guidelines, which are incorporated herein and which may be amended,
modified or supplemented and applied accordingly to this Grant Agreement by Commerce in its
sole discretion; and for (4) the creation and retention of certain jobs in the course of completing
certain renovations/construction work at the Property (altogether, the “Project,” as summarized
in Exhibit A to this Grant Agreement).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and such other valuable
consideration as set out herein, the Parties mutually agree to the following terms and conditions:

Grant Agreement - 1



Page 050

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

(a). As conditions of the Grant Agreement:

i. The highest elected official of the Governmerital Unit shall execute two originals
of this Grant Agreement in its exact form (unless Commerce approves of a
change to its tenms in writing) and shall return one of them to Commerce;

ii. The Governmental Unit shall ensure that its highest elected official and a duly
authorized representative of the Owner execute two originals of the Rural
Economic Development Loan Agreement and Legally Binding Commitment
(“LBC”) in its exact form (unless Commeice approves of a change to its terms in
writing) and shall return one such original to Commerce with the one executed
original of the Grant Agreement;

iii. The Governmental Unit shall ensure with the Owner that every individual or
entity that has any ownership interest in the real property which is the subject of
the Project executes two originals of the Promissory Note attached as Exhibit F
in its exact form and shall return one such original to Commerce with the one
executed originals of the Grant Agreement; and

iv. Exhibit A refers to the entity (or entities, as applicable) required to create and
maintain certain full-time new jobs (“New Jobs”) to complete the Project asthe
“Company,” the “Employer” and the “Business” (together and hereiniafter, the
“Business”). The Governmental Unit shall ensure that an authorized
representative of each Business executes a Waiver of Confidentiality (“Waiver”),
attached as Exhibit G, and shall return the original of any such Waiver to
Commerce with the executed originals of the Grant Agreement. The
Governmental Unit shall also ensure that any additional Business which
becomes involved in the Project after the Grant Agreement is finalized executes
a Waiver upon its involvement, the original of which the Governmental Unit
shall promptly forward to Commerce.

(b). The Governmental Unit shall provide Commerce with any information obtained
pursuant to the LBC and allow Commerce to execute any rights of the Governmental
Unit under the LBC, including the Governmental Unit’s rights of access, review or
monitoring and Commerce’s rights as a third-party beneficiary thereunder.

(c). The Governmental Unit shall exercise all of its rights and duties under the LBC ina
prudent and timely manner to ensure the use of the Grant funds for the intended
purposes and objectives and to preserve the rights of Commerce in this Grant
Agreement and the LBC.

(d). The LBC specifies how many New Jobs the Business must create and maintain in the
performance of the Project and, if the Business fails to do so, those Grant funds that
the Owner must repay to the Governmental Unit for return to Commerce or else repay
directly to Commerce, upon request and as directed. If such New Jobs are not created
or maintained, then the Governmental Unit shall return to Commerce any Grant funds
it has not already disbursed to the Owner, make a timely demand for repayment from
the Owner and, if such repayment is not forthcoming, initiate and fully litigate legal
proceedings against the Owner to recover such repayment.

Grant Agreement - 2



Page 051

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

(e). Without limitation, failure by the Govemmental Unit to timely demand repayment
from and, if necessary, initiate and fully litigate such legal proceedings against the
Owner may affect the future consideration of the Governmental Unit for grant
programs administered by Commerce. Further, and without limitation, if the
Governmental Unit fails to timely initiate legal proceedings against the Owner for
such repayment and Commerce elects to do so instead, the Governmental Unit is
responsible and agrees to reimburse Commerce for all litigation costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees that Commerce incurs in pursuing repayment.

2. Changes in the Project or Other Conditions.

(a). A “Project Change” is any material alteration, addition, deletion or expansion of the
Project, including (without limitation) material changes to construction or
rehabilitation, the terms or conditions of the loan under the LBC (“Loan”), the
required number of New Jobs, the matching investment in the Project, any cessation
of business by the Owner or any Business and any filing of bankruptcy by the
Governmental Unit, the Owner or any Business. There shall be no Project Changes
unless expressly approved of by Commerce in a separate, prior written agreement
stating, if applicable, the costs and schedule for completing the Project Change.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and wherever referred to in this Grant Agreement,
“cessation of business,” “ceasing to do business™ and “ceases to do business” shall
not include (1) ceasing operations to maintain, service or upgrade real or personal
property of the Owner, (2) seasonal shutdowns of operations as long as such cessation
do not exceed a total of four (4) weeks in any calendar year (excluding time
attributable to an event of force majeure as described below) and (3) under the
circumstances of for the period of time described in Paragraph 17 below.

(b). Additionally, the Governmental Unit shall immediately notify Commerce of any
change in conditions or local law, or any other event, which may significantly affect
its ability to oversee, administer or perform this Grant Agreement, the LBC or the
Project. In its sole and unreviewable discretion, Commerce may deem such a change
in conditions, local law or other event to constitute a Project Change.

3. Term of Grant Apreement. The effective period of this Grant Agreement shall commence
on 2/17/2022 (“Effective Date”) and shall terminate on 2/17/2024 unless terminated on an
earlier date under the terms of this Grant Agreement (either one of which dates shall
constitute the “Termination Date™) or unless extended for an express term in writing by the
Governmenta] Unit.

4.  Funding. The Rural Authority grants to the Governmental Unit an amount not to exceed
$500,000.00 for expenditures directly relating to the Project. The Governrental Unit
hereby represents and warrants that all Grant funds shall be utilized exclusively for the
purpose of the Project and consistent with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
requirements, and that the Governmental Unit shall not make or approve of any improper
expenditure of Grant funds (including Loan funds). Administrative expenses of the

Grant Agreement - 3



Page 052

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

5.

Governmental Unit are not eligible for Grant funding and any such use of Grant funds will
violate this Grant Agreement.
Independent Status of the Governmental Unit.

(2). The Governmental Unit is an entity independent from the Rural Authority and
Commerce. The Grant Agreement, the LBC, the Project and any actions taken
pursuant to them shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between
or among Commerce, the Rural Authority, the Governmental Unit or any third party
(including, without limitation, the Owner or any Business). Nor shall the Grant
Agreement, the LBC or the Project be construed to make the Governmental Unit
(including its employees, agents, members or officials) or any third party (including,
without limitation, the Owner or any Business) employees, agents, members or
officials of Commerce or the Rural Authority. Neither the Governmental Unit nor
any third party (including, without limitation, the Owner or any Business) shall have
the ability to bind Commerce or the Rural Authority to any agreement for payment of
goods or services or represent to any person that they have such ability.

(b). The Governmental Unit shall be responsible for payment of all of its expenses,
including rent, office expenses and all forms of compensation to employees. The
Governmental Unit shall provide worker's compensation insurance to the extent
required for its operations and shall accept full responsibility for payments of
unemployment tax or compensation, social security, income taxes, and any other
charges, taxes or payroll deductions required by law in connection with its operations,
for itself and its employees who are performing work pursuant to this Grant
Agreement, All expenses incurred by the Governmental Unit are its sole
responsibility, and neither Commerce nor the Rural Authority shall be liable for the
payment of any obligations incurred in the performance of the Project.

Method of Payment. Commerce shall pay the Grant funds to the Governmental Unit in
accordance with the Payment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B after receipt of written
requests for payment from the Governmental Unit certifying that the conditions for such
payment under this Grant Agreement have been met and that the Governmental Unit is
entitled to receive the amount so requested and any other documentation that may be

required by Commerce.

Obligation of Funds. The Governmental Unit shall not obligate Grant funds prior to the
Effective Date or subsequent to the Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. All
obligations outstanding as of the Termination Date shall be liquidated within thirty days.

Project Records.

(a). The Governmental Unit shall maintain full, accurate and verifiable financial records,
supporting documents and all other pertinent data for the Project in such a manner as
to clearly identify and document the expenditure of the State funds provided under
this Grant Agreement separate from accounts for other awards, monetary
contributions or other revenue sources for this Project.

Grant Agreement - 4



Page 053

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

9.

(b). The Governmental Unit shall retain all financial records, supporting documents and

all other pertinent records related to the Project for a period of five (5) years from the
Termination Date. In the event such records are audited, all Project records shall be
retained beyond the five-year period until the audit is concluded and any and all audit
findings have been resolved.

Monitoring. Reports and Aunditing.

(a).

(®).

{c).

(d).

(e).

The Governmental Unit agrees to ensure compliance and provide its assistance with
such monitoring and auditing requirements as the State may request, including
following the Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. Additionally, the
Governmental Unit shall regularly monitor all performance under Grant-supported
activities, including activities performed by the Owner and any Business, to ensure
that time schedules are being met, New Jobs are being created and maintained and
other performance goals are being achieved.

The Governmental Unit shall furnish Commerce detailed written progress reports
according to the time periods specified in Exhibit C or as otherwise requested by
Commerce. Such reports should describe the progress made by the Governmental
Unit, the Owner and any Business toward achieving the purpose(s) of the Project,
including specifically the goals of New Job creation and maintenance. Such
descriptions should include the successes and problems encountered during the
reporting period. Failure to submit a required report by the scheduled submission
date will result in the withholding of any forthcoming payment until Commerce is in
receipt of the delinquent report and the report meets with Commerce’s approval, in
Commerce’s sole discretion.

The Governmental Unit acknowledges and agrees that, with regard to the Grant
funds, it will be subject to the audit and reporting requirements prescribed by N.C.G.S
§159-34, Local Government Finance Act - Annual Independent Audit; rules and
regulations. Such audit and reporting requirements may vary depending upon the
amount and source of Grant funding received by the Governmental Unit and are
subject to change from time to time.

Within thirty (30) days after the Termination Date, the Governmental Unit shall
submit a final report to Commerce describing the activities and accomplishments of
the Project. The final report shall include a review of performance and activities over
the entire Project period. In the final report, the Governmental Unit should describe
the Project, how it was implemented, to what degree the established Project
objectives were met and the difficulties encountered, what the Project changed and its
cost.

The Governmental Unit grants the State and any of its related agencies, commissions
or departments (including, without limitation, Commerce, the North Carolina State
Auditor and the North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management) and any of
their authorized representatives, at all reasonable times and as often as necessary
(including after the Termination Date), access to and the right to inspect, copy,
monitor, and examine all of the books, papers, records and other documents relating
to the Grant Agreement, the LBC or the Project. Likewise, the Governmental Unit

Grant Agreement - 5



Page 054

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

shall ensure that the Owner and any Business provide the same access. In addition,
the Governmental Unit agrees to comply at any time, including after the Termination
Date, with any requests by the State (including, without limitation, the Rural
Authority or Commerce) for other financial and organizational materials to permit the
State to comply with its fiscal monitoring responsibilities or to evaluate the short- and

long-range impact of its programs.

10. Termination: Availability of Funds.

(a). 1f the Governmental Unit fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations
or violates any of the covenants or stipulations under this Agreement, if the Owner
fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations or violates any of its
covenants or stipulations under the LBC or if any Business fails to fulfill those
requirements applicable to it in the LBC, the Governmental Unit agrees that
Commerce has the right to terminate this Grant Agreement and/or the LBC by giving,
as applicable, the Governmental Unit or the Governmental Unit and the Owner
written notice specifying the Termination Date, which Commerce may determine in
its sole discretion. Upon such termination, Commerce shall have no responsibility to
make additional Grant payments. Upon such termination, the Governmental Unit
shall not expend any Grant funds (including Loan funds) without Commerce’s
express written authorization and shall return all unspent Grant funds to Commerce
upon demand.

(). The obligations of the Rural Authority and/or Commerce to pay any amounts under
this Grant Agreement are contingent upon the availability and continuation of funds
for such purpose. If funds for the Grant (and therefore the Loan) become unavailable,
the Governmental Unit agrees that Commerce has the right to terminate this Grant
Agreement and/or the LBC by giving written notice specifying the Termination Date,
which Commerce shall determine in its sole discretion. Upon such termination, the
State shall have no responsibility to make additional Grant payments. Further, upon
such termination, the Governmental Unit shall not expend any Grant funds (including
Loan funds) without Commerce’s express written authorization and shall return all
unspent Grant funds to Commerce upon demand.

11. Liabilities and Loss. The Governmental Unit hereby agrees to release, indemnify and hold
harmless the State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority and Commerce), and
their respective members, officers, directors, employees, agents and attorneys (together, the
"Indemnified Parties"), from any claims of third parties (including, without limitation, the
Owner and the Business) arising out of any act or omission of the Governmental Unit or
any third party (including, without limitation, the Owner and the Business) in connection
with the performance of this Grant Agreement, the LBC or the Project, and for all losses
arising from their implementation. Without limiting the foregoing, the Governmental Unit
hereby releases the Indemnified Parties from, and agrees that such Indemnified Parties are
not liable for, and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties against,
any and all liability or loss, cost or expense, including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, fines, penalties and civil judgments, resulting from or arising out of or in

Grant Agreement - 6



Page 055

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

connection with or pertaining to, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of
any person occurring in connection with the Project, or resulting from any defect in the
fixtures, machinery, equipment or other property used in connection with the Project or
arising out of, pertaining to, or having any connection with, the Project or the financing
thereof (whether arising out of acts, omissions, or negligence of the Governmental Unit or
of any third party (including, without limitation, the Owner and the Business), or of any of
their agents, contractors, servants, employees, licensees, lessees, or assignees), including
any claims and losses accruing to or resulting from any and all subcontractors, material
men, laborers and any other person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work,
services, materials or supplies in connection with the Project.

12. Govemmental Unit Representations and Warranties. The Governmental Unit hereby
represents and warrants that:

(a). The execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement have been duly authorized by all
necessary Governmental Unit action and are not in contravention of law or in
contravention of the provisions of any indenture agreement or undertaking to which
the Governmental Unit is a party or by which it is bound.

(b). There is no action, suit proceeding, or investigation at law or in equity or before any
court, public board or body pending, or to the knowledge of the Governmental Unit,
threatened against or affecting it, the Owner or the Business, that could or might
adversely affect the Project or any of the transactions contemplated by this Grant
Agreement or the validity or enforceability of this Grant Agreement or the abilities of
the Governmental Unit or the Owner to discharge their obligations under this Grant
Agreement. Ifitis subsequently found that an action, suit, proceeding, or
investigation did or could threaten or affect the development of the Project, the
Governmental Unit shall be liable to Commerce for repayment of the entire amount of
the Grant and this Grant Agreement may be terminated by Commerce effective upon
notice.

(c). No consent or approval is necessary from any governmental authority as a condition
to the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement by the Governmental Unit or
the performance of any of its obligations hereunder, or all such requisite
governmental consents or approvals have been obtained. The Governmental Unit
shall provide Commerce with evidence of the existence of any such necessary
consents or approvals at the time of the execution of this Grant Agreement.

(d). The Governimental Unit is solvent.

(e). A cash match grant, loan or other funding (“Cash Match”) equal to the amount of
the Loan shall have been unconditionally committed to the Project. The
Governmental Unit shall have procured and contributed at least five percent (5%)
of this Cash Match, but no part of this 5% contribution can have derived, either
directly or indirectly, from any other State or federal source. All Cash Match funds
shall be utilized exclusively for the purpose of the Project, and there shall be no
improper expenditures of Cash Match funds. All Cash Match funds shall be
expended prior to or simultaneously with and at the same rate as the Owner’s
expenditure of Loan funds.

Grant Agreement - 7



Page 056

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

®.

Upon the Governmental Unit’s reasonable inquiry of and receipt of supporting
evidence from the Owner, both the Owner and any Business are duly authorized to do
business under North Carolina law and are not delinquent on any federal, state or
local taxes, licenses or fees.

13. Cessation/Termination, Bankruptcy. Dissolution or Insolvency.

(a).

(b)-

(©).

Under the LBC, the Owner agrees at all times to preserve its legal existence, except
that it may merge or consolidate with or into, or sell all or substantially all of its
assets to, any entity that expressly undertakes, assumes for itself and agrees in writing
to be bound by all of the obligations and undertakings of the Owner contained in the
LBC. If the Owner so merges, consolidates or sells its assets without such an
undertaking being provided, it agrees in the LBC to repay to the Governmental Unit
or Commerce, upon request and as directed, all unspent Loan funds. Further, a
merger, consolidation or sale without such an undertaking shall constitute a material
default under the LBC, and the Governmental Unit or Commerce may terminate the
LBC upon written notice to the Owner and hold the Owner liable for any other
repayment provided for under the LBC.

Other than as provided for in Paragraph 13(a) above, if the Owner or any Business
ceases to do business or becomes the subject of any bankruptcy, dissolution or
insolvency proceeding prior to the Termination Date, it shall be the sole responsibility
of the Governmental Unit to (i) immediately notify Commerce and (ii) pursue any
claim for Grant funds owed the State by the Owner or Business, including in any
legal proceeding, to obtain the maximum payment allowed by law. To the extenit the
Governmental Unit fails to pursue repayment of the Grant funds in such a proceeding
and obtain the maximum payment allowed by law, and without limitation, the
Governmenta] Unit shall be liable to Commerce for all amounts that should have been
awarded to the Unit in the proceeding if it bad taken the necessary action
(notwithstanding whether such amounts would have actually been paid by the Owner
or Business). Alternatively, without limitation, if the Governmental Unit fails to
pursue repaymeént of the Grant funds in such a proceeding and Commerce elects to do
so instead, the Governmental Unit is responsible and agrees to reimburse Commerce
for all legal costs and reasonable attomeys’ fees that Commerce incurs in pursuing
repayment.

If the Governmental Unit fails to provide Commerce notice of the Owner or any
Business ceasing to do business or becoming the subject of any bankruptcy,
dissolution or insolvency proceeding prior to the Termination Date, it shall constitute
a material default under this Grant Agreement. If there is such a cessation or such a
proceeding, Commerce may terminate the Grant Agreement upon written notice to
the Governmental Unit. If there is such a cessation or such a proceeding, the
Governmental Unit agrees that Commerce has the right to terminate this Grant
Agreement and/or the LBC by giving, as applicable, the Governmental Unit or the
Governmental Unit and the Owner written notice specifying the Termination Date,
which Commerce may determine in its sole discretion. Upon such termination, the
Governmental Unit, the Owner and any Business shall not expend any Grant or Loan

Grant Agreement - 8



Page 057

Rural Econemic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

funds without Commerce’s express written authorization and shall return all unspent
Grant or Loan funds to Commerce upon demand and if permissible under applicable
bankruptcy, dissolution or insolvency law.

14. Additional Repayment Reguirémerits dnd Remedies.

(a). The repayment requirements and remedies addressed in this Paragraph 14 are in
addition to those repayment requirements and other remedies set forth elsewhere in
this Grant Agreement, including the requirements to repay unspent Grant funds. No
remedy conferred or reserved by or to the State is intended to be exclusive of any
other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy provided for in this Grant
Agreement, or now or hereinafter existing at law, in equity, or by statute, and any
such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be
deemed expedient,

{(b). Ifthere is a breach of any of the requirements, covenants or agreements in this Grant
Agreement or the LBC, or if there are any representations or warranties which are
untrue as to a material fact in this Grant Agreement, the LBC or in relation to the
LBC or the Project (including the performance thereof), the Governmental Unit
agrees that Commerce has the sole discretion to require repayment from the
Governmental Unit of an amount of Grant funds to be determined in Commerce’s
sole discretion but not to exceed the amount of Grant funds the Governmental Unit
has already received under this Grant Agreement. Such requirements, covenants or
agreements include but are not limited to Paragraphs 1, 2(a), 4, 10(a), 12 and 13 of
this Grant Agreement and include but are not limited to the creation and retention of
the New Jobs and the retention of the Baseline Number of jobs under the LBC.

15. No Waiver by the State. Failure of the State (including, without limitation, the Rural

16.

Authority and Commerce) at any time to require performance of any term  or provision of
this Grant Agreement or the LBC shall in no manner affect the rights of the State at a later
date to enforce the same or to enforce any future compliance with or performance of any of
the terms or provisions hereof. No waiver of the State of any condition or the breach of any
term, provision or representation contained in this Grant Agreement or the LBC, whether
by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more instances, shall be deemed to be or construed
as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or of the breach of that or any other
term, provision or representation.

Waiver of Objections to Timeliness of Legal Action. The Governmental Unit knowingly
waives any objections it has or may have to timeliness of any legal action (including any
administrative petition or civil action) by the State (including, without limitation, the Rural
Authority or Commerce) to enforce its rights under this Grant Agreement. This waiver
includes any objections the Governmental Unit may possess based on the statutes of
limitations or repose and the doctrines of estoppel or laches.

Grant Agreement - 9



Page 058

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

17. Force Majeure. If (s) during the term of this Grant the real or personal property located on
or constituting the Property suffers damage or destruction caused by acts of God, fires,
floods, storms, inswrrection, tiots, acts of the public enemy, pational catastrophe, or similar
unexpected events, (b) such damage or destruction was not principally caused by the
negligence, willful misconduct or violation of applicable law by the Ownér, (c) the Owner
uses reasonable efforts to repair, or tb work around, such damage or destruction reasonably
promptly, dnd (d) as a direct result of such damage or destruction the Owner cannot satisfy
the requirements and obligations of Sections 3 of the LBC as and when the LBC requiires,
then the Owner will be entitled to an extension of time not to exceed sixty (60) days to
satisfy the requirements and obligations of Section 3 of the LBC; provided that the
Govemmental Unit in its sole discretion with respect to the obligations it is owed by the
Owner, may elect to extend that sixty day period to give the Owner additional time to
satisfy those requirements.

18. Special Provisions and Conditions.

(a). Non-discrimination. The Governmental Unit agrees not to discriminate by reason of
age, race, religion, color, sex, national origin or disability related to the activities of
this Grant Agreement.

(b). Conflict of Interest. The Governmental Unit shall adopt and keep on file, along with
the execuited copies of this Grant Agreement, a cOpY of its policy and any ordinance
or resolution it has adopted addressing conflicts of interest that may arise involving
the members of the Governmental Unit’s governing body and/or any of its employees
or officers involved in the Grant, the LBC or the Project. Such policy, ordinance or
resolution shall address situations in which any of these individuals may directly or
indirectly benefit, other than through receipt of their normal compensation in their
capacities as the Governmental Unit's employees, officers or members ofits
governing body, from thé Grant, the LBC or Project, and shall inclade actions to be
taken by the Unit or the individual, or both, to avoid conflicts of interest and the
appearance of impropriety. Additionally, the Governmental Unit certifies that, as of
the date it executes this Grant Agreement, no such individuals have such a conflict of
interest or will directly or indirectly benefit, except in the capacities described above,
from the Grant, LBC or Project. Throughout the duration of this Grant Agreement,
the LBC and the Project, the Governmental Unit has the duty to promptly inform
Commerce of any such conflict of interest or direct or indirect benefit of which it
becomes aware.

(c). Compliance with Laws. The Governmental Unit shall at all times observe and
comply with all laws, regulations, codes, rules, ordinances and other requirements
(together, “Laws”) of the state, federal and local governments which may in any
manner affect the performance of the Grant Agreement, the LBC or the Project.

(d). Non-Assignability, The Governmental Unit shall not assign or transfer any interest in
the Agreement without the prior written consent of Commeroe; provided, however,
that claims for money due to Governmental Unit from Commerce under this
Agreement may be assigned to any commercial bank or other financial institution

without such approval.

Grant Agreement - 10



Page 059

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

(e). Personnel. The Governmental Unit represents that it has, or will secure at its own
expense, all personnel required to monitor, carry ont and perform the scope of
services of this Agreement. Such employees shall not be employees of Commerce.
Such personnel shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized under state and local
law to perform such services.

19. Notice. All notices required or permitted to be delivered hereunder and all communications
in respect hereof shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered
or when deposited in the United States mails, certified, return receipt requested, first class,
postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

If to the Rural Authority or Commerce: Attn: Hazel Edmond
Program Manager
North Carolina Department of Commerce
Rural Economic Development Division
301 North Wilmington Street
4346 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4346

If to the Governmental Unit: Attn: The Honorable Raleigh York
Mayor
City of Thomasville
PO Box 368
Thomasville, NC 27361-0368

or addressed to such other address or to the attention of such other individual as Commerce

or the Governmental Unit shall have specified in a notice delivered pursuant to this
subsection.

Grant Agreement - 11



Page 060

Rural Economic Development Grant Agrecment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

20. Entire Agreement. This Grant Agrecment supersedes all prior agreements between or

21.

among the Rural Authority and/or Commerce and the Govémmental Unit with regard to the
Project and exprésses their entire understanding with respect to the transactions
contemplated herein; and shall not bé amended, modified or altered except pursuant to a
writing signed by both Commerce and the Goveramental Unit.

Execution. This Grant Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which, when executed, shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts, together, shall
constitute one and the same Grant Agreement which shall be sufficiently evidenced by one
of such original counterparts.

22. Construction. This Grant Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the

23.

State of North Carolina.

Severability. Each provision of this Grant Agreement is intended to be severable and, if
any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair any other
provision of this Grant Agreement, but this Grant Agreement shall be construed as if such
invalid, illegal or uinenforceable provision had not been contained herein.

Grant Agrecment - 12



Page 061

Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

24. Acceptance. If the Govemnmental Unit agrees to the Grant conditions as stated, please
return the executed documents specified in Paragraph 1(a). This Grant may be withdrawn
if Commerce has not received such documents within thirty (30) days from the date of the
cover letter from Commerce to the Governmental accompanying this Grant Agreement and
its Exhibits,

IN WITNESSETH WHEREQF, the parties Lereto have executed this Grant Agreement as of the
date first above written.

City of Thomasville

[}
Signature: %Z M Q
g o 42

Printed Name: Raleigh York, Jr.

Title: Mayor

Date: CQ."I 6?‘4]35&&

North Carolina Department of Commerce

Signature: [SEAL]

e oo —

Printed Name: Kenny Flowers

Title: Assistant Secretary for Rural Economic Development

Date: 2/23/2022
Grant Agreement - 13




Page 062

BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM - Existing Business Building 2022-086-3201-2587

City of Thomasville
BrassCraft Manufacturing/Project Viceroy

EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF PROJECT

Summary: The project will support the renovation of a 157,470 SF building located at 1024 Randolph Street. The building
was constructed in 1965. BrassCraft Manufacturing is a manufacturer and distributor of a variety of plumbing products for
new construction, repair, and remodel in the US and international markets.

EXHIBIT B
PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Eligible Expenditures:

Vacant Building Category: within the gxisting building footprint
Existing Business Building Category: within the existing building:
Rural Health Care Category: within the existing building. additions-end/or new construction
Eligible costs under all fnding categories include, but are not limited to: materials and lsbor fo install HVAC, clectrical,
plunibing, fire alamm/suppression systems, roofing, floofing; carpentry, drywall, paint, etc. This is not an exhaustive list;
grantees should contact the Rural Development Division for questions about whether a specific expense is eligible under the

program.

The following costs are specifically prohibited under the program and may not be submitted for reimbursement or the
matching funds requirement: building purchase, architectural costs, engineering costs, permit fees, surveys, legal fees,
machinery & equipment, telephorie hardware and sofiware, computer hardware and software, fumishings, paving, fencing,
kitchen equipment, refrigeration équipment, etc. This is not an exhaustive list; grantecs should contact the Rural Development
Division for questions about whether a specific expense is eligible under the program.

Any company in which any project partner has an ownership or management interestin may act as a contractor for the
renovation project only if the company holds a valid NC General Contractors license. The relationship must have been
disclosed to the Rural Development Division anda copy of the company’s license must have been included in the application.
Licensed contracting companies owned or opérated by any project partner that are used in the renovation project will be
required to submit original invoices from the provider for all labor, materials, services-and subcontracted work plus proof that
those invoices have been paid in full.

Reimbursement Requirements:
The Department of Commerce will reimburse 50% of eligible expenditures up to the fotal grant amount upon receipt of the
following:

1. A completed financial request form,

2. Copies of eligible project invoices that support the request amount,

3. Evidence thaf the invoices submitted for reimbursement have been paid-in-full. Evidence may include copies cleared
checks, wire transfer or ACH receipts, and/or credit card receipts. Invojces paid with cash and those: not paid in full
will not be reimbursed, and

4. Satisfaction of reporting requirements according to Exhibit C below.

Eligible expenditures may not be incurred prior to the effective date or subsequent to the termination date of the grant.
Payments are subject to the availability of funds.



Page 063

BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM - Existing Business Building 2022-086-3201-2587
City of Thomasville
BrassCraft Manufacturing/Project Viceroy

EXHIBIT C
REPORTING SCHEDULE

Progress reports are due on January 15 and July 15" for each year that the grant remains open. The final report and job verification
documentation are due at the time of project completion or no later than 30 days after the grant end-date, whichever is sooner. The
teporting schedule remains in effect for the duration of the grant including time extensions.

Failure to submit progress reports as required:
1. Will result in non-payment of payment requests,
2, Can result in the immediate termination of the grant,
3. Can result in the demand for immediate repayment of any funds paid by The Department of Commerce, and
4. Will negatively impact the grantee’s eligibility for future Commerce grants.

EXHIBITD
JOB VERIFICATION AND CLOSE OUT REQUIREMENTS

Building Reuse and Rural Health Care loans are eligible for forgiveness once the creation and maintenance of the full-time
Jjobs committed for the project, as well as, all reporting requirements are approved by Commerce. Below are the requirements
and procedure for approval,

Job Verification

To be considered eligible, a full-time job must be filled with one employee who works at least 35 hours per week and is paid

at least minimum wage. Part-time, full-time equivalents, or coniract/consulting positions are not eligible.

Grantees should submit the following as evidence of job creation and maintenance:

1. Job Certification Form—both the grantee and the participating business are required to complete respective sections of
this form that attests to the creation of the number of jobs full-time jobs committed to receive the grant. The form must
be signed by the authorized representatives of the local government grantee and the participating business.

2. NCUI 10} Forms—The grantee should submit copies of each company’s Employer s Quarterly Tax and Wage Report
(NCUI 101 forms) that have been submitted to the North Carolina Employment Security Commission according to the
requirements below,
¢ NCUI 101 Forms should be submitted 1o Commerce.

e The forms must include the appropriate number of quarters to show that the company maintained the required
employment level for six-consecutive months.

s The employment level reported must meet or exceed the baseline number of employees reported at the time of the
application plus the number of new, full-time jobs committed for the grant.

o The jobs created and the baseline must be maintained concurrently during the same six-month period.

s Ifthe NCUI 101 forms include employees from other locations in North Carolina, the names of the employees
working in the grant funded project facility should be highlighted, and a multi-site report should be provided.

e Ifthe NCUI 101 forms include both full and part-time employees an “f* should be written next to the name of each
full-time employee and a “p” should be written next to the name of each part-time employee.

3. Final Report—the grantee must submit the Final Report Form that describes the activities and outcomes of the project.

4. Photos—the grantee must submit digital photos that show a variety of views of the completed project.

All forms, including reporting and request for payment, can be found on the Commerce website at hup:/fwww.necommerce.com/rep
. Email corapleted forms and reports to  rppreportstfnccommerce.com




Page 064

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBITE
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

City of Thomasville (the “Governmental Unit”) enters into this Loan Agreement and
Legally Binding Commitment (the “LBC,” including the “Loan,” defined below with Thomas
Mfg Co Inc of Thomasville (the “Owner” and, together with the Governmental Unit, the
“Parties”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §§143B-472.127 and .128, the North Carolina Rural
Infrastructure Authority (the “Rural Authority”) of the State of North Carolina (“State”) has
awarded a grant (the “Grant”) to the Governmental Unit, and the North Carolina Department of
Commerce (“Commerce™), an agency of the State, will administer the Grant; and

WHEREAS, the Grant is memorialized in an agreement (the “Grant Agreement”)
between Commerce and the Governmental Unit, and the Grant Agreement includes Exhibit A
(Scope of Project), Exhibit B (Payment Schedule), Exhibit C (Reporting Schedule), Exhibit D
(Closeout Schedule/Job Requirements), Exhibit E (this LBC, which incorporates by reference the
Grant Agreement and its other Exhibits), Exhibit F (Promissory Note) and Exhibit G-(Waiver of
Confidentiality (“Waiver”)); and

WHEREAS, without limitation, the Rural Authority awarded the Grant: (1) based on the
application filed by the Governmental Unit and any-subsequent materials supporting the
application that have been approved of by Commerce in writing, all of which are incorporated
into the Grant Agreement by reference; (2) based on the representation in the application that the

Owner owns certain real property located at:
1024 Randolph St

Thomasville, NC 27360

in Davidson County, North Carolina (the “Property™); (3) based on Commerce’s Grant
requirements-and guidelines, which are incorporated herein and which may be amended,
modified or supplemented and applied accordingly to the Grant Agreement and this LBC by
Commerce in its sole discretion; and for (4) the creation and retention of certain jobs in the
course of completing certain renovations/construction work at the Property (altogether, the
“Project,” as summarized in Exhibit A to this Grant Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit and the Owner are required to enter into this LBC as
a condition of the Governmental Unit loaning the Grant funds to the Owner.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and such other valuable
consideration set out herein, the Parties mutually agree to the following terms and conditions:

1. Third-Party Beneficiary. The Partics agree that the State (including, without limitation,
Commerce and the Rural Authority) is an intended third-party beneficiary of this LBC
(including the Loan) and may, at its option, enforce the terms of this LBC or appear as a
party in any litigation concerning the LBC,

Legally Binding Commitment - 1



Page 065

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner

BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587
2. Loan

() The Governmental Unit hereby loans to the Owner the sum of $500,000.00 (the
“Loan”), which consists entirely of State Grant funds, to fund the Project. Exhibit A
to the Grant Agreement refers to the entity (or entities, as applicable) required to
create and maintain certain full-time new jobs, as defined in Paragraph 3(a), to
complete the Project under this LBC as the “Company,” the “Employer” and the
“Business” (together and hereinafter, the “Business”). The Owner specifically
acknowledges that: it must repay the Loan in accordance with the terms of this LBC if
the Business does not create and maintain the new jobs required by Paragraph 3(a)
below; and as evidence of its obligation to repay the Loan, the Owner has executed
the Promissory Note, Exhibit F to the Grant Agreement, which the Owner represents,
acknowledges and agrees has been signed by every individual or entity that has any
ownership interest in the Property and is fully binding on the Owner.

(b). As conditions of receiving the Loan:

i.  The highest elected official of the Governmental Unit and a duly authorized
representative of the Owner shall execute two originals of the LBC in its exact
form (unless Commerce approves of a change to its terms in writing), and the
Governmental Unit shall return one such original to Commerce;

ii.  Every individual or entity that has any ownership interest in the Property shall
execute two originals of the Promissory Note in its exact form, and the
Governmental Unit shall return one such original to Commerce; and

iii. The Owner and the Governmental Unit shall ensure that an authorized
representative of each Business executes a Waiver, Exhibit G to the Grant
Agreement, and the Governmenta] Unit shall forward the original of any such
Waiver to Commerce.

(c). The Owner hereby represents and warrants that all Loan funds shall be utilized
exclusively for the purpose of the Project and that it shall not make or approve of any
improper expenditures of Loan funds.

3. New Job Creation, Maintenance of New Jobs and Baseline Number of Jobs and

Verification.

(a). New Job Creation and Maintenance of New Jobs and Baseline Number of Jobs. A
“New Job” shall mean a full-time job (consisting of at least 35 hours per week of
employment and eligibility for all benefits generally available for full-time employees
of the Business) which is with the Business, is located in North Carolina, has a wage
at least equal to the minimum wage, is created and maintained by the Business in
order to complete the Project and is over and above the 123 full-time jobs in North
Carolina (“Baseline Number™) that the Business reported having at the time of the
application for the Project. The Owner agrees that the Business shall be required to
create and maintain in existence for six (6) consecutive months 72 New Jobs prior to
the Termination Date, unless this term is extended pursuant to Paragraph 5. Separate
and apart from these New Jobs, the Owner agrees that the Business shall be required
to maintain in existence its Baseline Number of jobs for as long as it takes the
Business to create and maintain its required number of New Jobs.

Legally Binding Commitment - 2



Page 066

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBITE
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

(b). Verification. When the New Jobs required by Paragraph 3(a) bave been created and
maintained for six (6) consecutive months, the Owner shall notify the Governmental
Unit so that it and/or Commerce can verify their creation and maintenance, as well as
the maintenance of the Baseline Number of jobs and the satisfaction of all other
conditions and terms of this LBC and the Project. The Owner shall cause any
Business to provide to the Governmental Unit and Commerce, or their respective
designees, full and complete access to all records of the Business necessary to verify
the number and types of jobs created and maintained, the wages paid to employees
and all other conditions and terms of this LBC and the Project. Failure of any
Business to provide such access upon request shall constitute-a material default by the
Owner under the terms of this LBC and, in the sole discretion of the Governmental
Unit and/or Commetee, may subject the Owner to repayment in an amount calculated
under Paragraph 13 below.

4. Changes in the Proiect or Other Conditions.
(a). A “Project Change” is any material alteration, addition, deletion or expansion of the

Project, including (without limitation) material changes to construction or
rehabilitation, the terms or conditions of the loan under the LBC, the required number
of New Jobs, the matching investment in the Project, any cessation of business by the
Owner or any Business and any filing of bankruptcy by the Owner or any Business.
There shall be no Project Changes unless expressly approved of by Commerce and
the Governmental Unit in a separate, prior written agreement stating, if applicable, the
costs and schedule for completing the Project Change.

(b). Additionally, the Owner shall immediately notify the Governmental Unit of any
change in conditions or local law, or any other event, which may significantly affect
the ability of it or any Business to perform the LBC or the Project. In their sole
discretion, the Governmental Unit or Commerce may deem such a change in
conditions, local law or other event to constitute a Project Change.

5. Term of LBC. The effective period of this LBC shall commence 2/17/2022 (“Effective
Date”) and shall terminate 2/17/2024 unless terminated on an earlier date under the terms of
this LBC (either one of which dates shall constitute the “Termination Date™) or unless
extended for an express term in writing by the Governmental Unit.

6. Independent Status of the Governmental Unit.
(a). The State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority and Commerce) and the

Governmental Unit are independent entities from one another and from the Owner
and any third party (including, without limitation, any Business). The Grant
Agreement, the LBC, the Project and any actions taken pursuant to them shall not be
deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the State and the
Governmental Unit or between or among either of them and the Owner or any third
party (including, without limitation, any Business). Nor shall the Grant Agreement,
the LBC or the Project be construed to make any employees, agents or members of
the Owner or any third party (including, without limitation, any Business) into
employees, agents, members or officials of the Governmental Unit or the State or to
make employees, agents, members or officials of the Governmental Unit into

Legally Binding Commitment - 3



Page 067

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBITE
Legally Binding Commitment, Private QOwner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

®).

(a).

(b).

employees, agents, members or officials of the State. Neither the Owner nor any third
party (including, without limitation, any Business) shall have the ability to bind the
Govemmental Unit or the State to any agreement for payment of goods or services or
represent to any person that they have such ability. Nor shail the Governmental Unit
have the ability to bind the State to any agreement for payment of goods or services
or represent to any person that it has such ability.

The Owner and any third party (including, without limitation, any Business) shall be
responsible for payment of all their expenses, including rent, office expenses and all
forms of compensation to their employees. The Owner and any third parties
(including, without limitation, any Business) shall provide worker's compensation
insurance to the extent required for their operations and shall accept full responsibility
for payments of unemployment tax or compensation, social security, income taxes,
and any other charges, taxes or payroll deductions required by law in connection with
their operations, for themselves and their employees who are performing work
pursuant to this LBC or the Project. All expenses incurred by the Owner or any third
party (including, without limitation, any Business) are their sole responsibilities, and
neither the Governmental Unit nor the State (including, without limitation, Commerce
and the Rural Authority) shall be liable for the payment of any obligations incurred in
the performance of the Project.

Project Records.

The Owner shall maintain and cause any Business to maintain full, accurate and
verifiable financial records, supporting documents and all other pertinent data for the
Project in such a manner as to clearly identify and document the expenditure of the
State funds provided under this LBC separate from accounts for other awards,
monetary contributions or other revenue sources for this Project.

The Owner shall retain and cause any Business to retain all financial records,
supporting documents and all other pertinent records related to this LBC, the Loan
and the Project for a period of five (5) years from the Termination Date. In the event
such records are audited, all such records shall be retained beyond the five-year
period until the audit is concluded and any and all andit findings have been resolved.

8. Monitoring. Reports and Auditing. The Owner agrees to generate and to cause any

Business to generate such reports regarding the LBC or the Project as may be requested by
the Governmental Unit or the State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority or
Commerce) in such form as they may request, including after the Termination Date. The
Owner further grants and shall cause any Business to grant the Governmental Unit or the
State (including any of its agencies, commissions or departments such as Commerce, the
North Carolina State Auditor and the North Carolina Office of State Budget and
Management) and any of their authorized representatives, at all reasonable times and as
often as necessary (including after the Termination Date), access to and the right to inspect,
copy, monitor and examine all of the books, papers, records and other documents relating
to the LBC or the Project. In addition, the Owner agrees to comply and to cause any
Business to comply at any time, including after the Termination Date, with any requests by
the State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority or Commerce) for other
financial and organizational materials to permit the State to comply with its fiscal

Legally Binding Commitment - 4



Page 068

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

monitoring responsibilities or to evaluate the short- and long-range impact of its programs.

Termination: Availability of Furids.

(2). If the Owner fails to fulfill in a timely and proper mantier its obligations or violates
any of its covenants or stipulations under the LBC or if any Business fails to fulfill
those requirements applicable to it in the LBC, the Owner agrees that the
Governmental Unit or Commerce has the right to terminate the LBC by giving the
Owner written notice specifying the Termination Date, which shall be determined by
the Governmental Unit or Commerce in their sole discretion. Upon such termination,
neither the State nor the Governmental Unit shall have any responsibility to make
Loan payments. Further, upon such termination, the Owner shall not expend any
Loan funds without the express written authorization of the Governmental Unit and
Commerce and shall return all unspent Loan funds to either the Governmental Unit or
Comimerce, upon request and as directed.

(b). If the Governmental Unit fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations
or violates any of the covenants or stipulations under its Grant Agreement with
Commerce, the Owner agrees that Commerce has the right to terminate its Grant
Agreement with the Governmental Unit and/or terminate this LBC by giving, as
applicable, the Governmental Unit or the Governmental Unit and the Owner written
notice specifying the Termination Date, which Commerce may determizie in its sole
discretion. Upon such terrnination, neither the State nor the Governmental Unit shall
have any responsibility to make Loan payments. Further, upon such termination, the
Owner shall not experid any Loan funds wifthout the express written authorization of
the Governmental Unit and Commerce and shall return all unspent Loan funds to
either the Governmental Unit or Commerce, upon request and as directed. :

(c). The obligations of the Rural Authority and/or Commerce to pay any Grant funds to
the Governmental Unit and for the Governmental Unit to pay any Loan amounts to
the Owner under this LBC are contingent upon the availability and continuation of
funds for such purpose. If funds for the Grant and therefore the Loan become
unavailable, the Owner agrees that either Commerce or the Governmental Unit has
the right to terminate this LBC by giving written notice specifying the Termination
Date, which eitlier the Goverrimental Unit or Commerce may determine in their sole
discretion. Upon such termination, neither the State nor the Governmental Unit shall
have any responsibility to make Loan payments. Further, upon such termination, the
Owner shall not expend any Loan funds without the express written authorization of
the Governmenta! Unit and Commerce and shall return all unspent Loan funds to the
Govermnmental Unit or Commerce, upon demand and as directed.

9.

10. Liabilities and Loss. The Owner hereby agrees to release, indemnify and hold harmless the
Governmental Unit and the State (including the Rural Authority and Commerce), and their
respective members, officers, directors, employees, agents and attorneys (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "Indemnified Parties"), from any claims of third parties
(including, without limitation, any Business) arising out of any act or omission of the
Owner or any third party (including, without limitation, any Business) in connection with
the performance of this LBC or the Project, and for all losses arising from implementation
of this LBC or the Project. Without limiting the foregoing, the Owner hereby releases the

Legally Binding Commitment - 5



Page 069

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

11.

Indemnified Parties from, and agrees that such Indemnified Parties are not liable for, and
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties against, any and all liability
or loss, cost or expense, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, fines,
penalties and civil judgments, resulting from or arising out of or in connection with or
pertaining to, any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person
occurring in connection with the Project, or resulting from any defect in the fixtures,
machinery, equipment or other property used in connection with the Project or arising out
of, pertaining to, or having any connection with, the Project or the financing thereof
(whether or not arising out of acts, omissions or negligence of the Owner or of any third
party (including, without limitation, any Business), or of any of their agents, contractors,
servants, employees, licensees, lessees, or assignees), including any claims and losses
accruing to or resulting from any and all subcontractors, material men, laborers and any
other person, firm or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, materials or
supplies in connection with the Project.

Owner Representations and Warranties. The Owner hercby represents and warrants that:

(a). The Owner and every Business are duly authorized to do business under North
Carolina law and are not delinquent on any federal, state or local taxes, licenses or
fees.

(b). This LBC has been entered into and executed on behalf of the Owner by an individual
with full actual and apparent aunthority to bind the Owner to the terms hereto, and the
execution and delivery of this LBC have been duly authorized by all necessary action,
and are not in contravention of law nor in contravention of any certificate of
authority, bylaws or other applicable organizational documents of the Owner, nor are
they in contravention of the provisions of any indenture, agreement or undertaking to
which the Owner is a party or by which it is bound.

(c). The Promissory Note has been executed by every individual or entity that has any
ownership interest in the Property and is fully binding on the Owner.

(d). There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before any
court, public board or body pending, or, to the Owner’s knowledge, threatened
against or affecting the Owner, that could or might adversely affect the Project, the
creation of the New Jobs or any of the transactions contemplated by this LBC, or the
validity or enforceability of this LBC or the Owner’s ability to discharge its
obligations under this LBC.

(e). Upon the Owner’s reasonable inquiry of any Business, there is no action, suit,
proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before any court, public board or body
pending, threatened against or affecting any Business that could or might adversely
affect the Project, the creation of the Jobs or any of the transactions contemplated by
this LBC or the validity or enforceability of this LBC or the ability of any Business to
create the Jobs specified herein.

(f). No consent or approval is necessary from any governmental authority as a condition
to the execution and delivery of this LBC by the Owner or the performance of any of
its obligations hereunder, or else all such requisite governmental consents or
approvals have been obtained. The Owner shall provide the Governmental Unit or
Commerce with evidence of the existence of any such necessary consents or
approvals at the time of the execution of this LBC.

Legally Binding Commitment - 6



Page 070

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E

Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM

(8)-
(h).

2022-086-3201-2587

The Owner is solvent and has inquired of and received reasonable evidence from any
Business of the solvency of that Business.

A cash match grant, loan or other funding (*Cash Match”) equal to the amousit of the
Loan shall have been unconditionally committed to the Project. The Governmental
Unit shall have procured and contributed at least five percent (5%) of this Cash
Match, but no part of this 5% contribution can have derived, either directly or
indirectly, from any other State or federal source. All Cash Match funds shall be
utilized exclusively for the purpose of the Project, and there shall be no improper
expenditures of Cash Match funds. All Cash Match funds shall be expended prior to
or simultaneously with and at the same rate as the Owner’s expenditure of Loan

funds.

12. Cessation/Termination, Bankruptcy. Dissolution or Insolvency.

(a).

(®).

(c).

d).

The Owner shall at all times preserve its legal existence, except that it may merge or
consolidate with or into or sell all or substantially all of its assets to any entity that
expressly undertakes, assumes for itself and agrees in writing to be bound by all of
the obligations and undertakings of the Owner contained in this LBC. If the Owner
so merges, consolidates or sells its assets without such an undertaking being provided,
it agrees to repay to the Governmental Unit or Commerce, upon request and as
directed, all unspent Loan funds. Further, any merger, consolidation or sale without
such an undertaking shall constitute a material default under this LBC, and the
Govemmental Unit or Commerce may terminate the LBC upon written notice to the
Owner and hold the Owner liable for any other repayment provided for under this
LBC.

Other than as provided for in Paragraph 12(a), if the Owner or any Business ceases to
do business or becomes the subject of any bankruptcy, dissolution or insolvency
proceeding prior to the Termination Date, the Owner shall give the Governmental
Unit immediate notice of the event, shall not expend any Loan funds without the
express written authorization of the Governmental Unit and shall return all unspent
Loan funds to the Governmental Unit or Commerce, upon demand and as directed
and if permissible under applicable bankruptcy, dissolution or insolvency law.

If the Owner fails to provide the Governmental Unit notice of the Owner or any
Business ceasing to do business or becoming the subject of any bankruptcy,
dissolution or insolvency proceeding prior to the Termination Date, it shall constitute
a material default under this LBC. If there is such a cessation or such a proceeding,
the Governmental Unit or Commerce may terminate the LBC upon written notice to
the Owner. Upon such termination, the Owner shall not expend any Loan funds
without the express written authorization of the Governmental Unit and shall return
all unspent Loan funds to the Governmental Unit or Commerce upon demand and as
directed and if permissible under applicable bankruptcy, dissolution or insolvency
law.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and wherever referred to in this LBC, “ceases to do
business” shall not include (1) ceasing operations to maintain, service or upgrade real or
personal property of the Owner, (2) season shutdowns of operations as long as such
cessation does not exceed a total of four (4) weeks in any calendar year (excluding time
attributable to an event of force majeure as described below) and (3) under the

Legally Binding Commitment - 7



Page 071

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

circumstances for the period of time described in Paragraph 22 below,

(a). The repayment requirements and remedies addtessed in this Paragraph 13 are in
addition to those repayment requirements and other remedies set forth elsewhere in
this LBC, including the requirements to repay unspent Loan funds. No remedy
conferred or reserved by or to the State or the Governmental Unit is intended to be
exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy provided for in this
LBC, or now or hereinafter existing at law, in equity, or by statute, and any such right
or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient.

(b). The Owner acknowledges that the Grant by the Rural Authority and the Loan by the
Govemmental Unit are predicated upon the creation and maintenance of the New
Jobs and maintenance of the Baseline Number of jobs required by Paragraph 3(a) and
that failure to create and/or maintain them will constitute a material default of this
LBC.

i.  Ifthe Business fails to create and maintain such New Jobs, then the Owner shall
repay to the Governmental Unit or Commerce, as directed, an amount equal to
the product of (i) $6,944.44 (the amount of Loan funds divided by the number
of New Jobs required to be created in Paragraph 3(a) and (ii) the number of
New Jobs required to be created in Paragraph 3(a), minus the number of New
Jobs actually created, above the Baseline Number reported, that have been in
existence for six (6) consecutive months.

ii.  Additionally, in the event that the Business fails to maintain its Baseline
Number of jobs as required under Paragraph 3(a), the Business shall lose credit
for any qualifying New Jobs under this LBC by the same number of jobs that
the Baseline Number is short. For example, if the Baseline Number of jobs falls
short by three (3) jobs as of the date the Business has created and maintained all
required New Jobs, the number of New Jobs deemed created and maintained
shall be reduced by three (3). The amount the Business must repay shall then
be calculated in accordance with Paragraph 13(b)i.

iii,  Either Commerce or the Governmental Unit shall notify the Owner in writing of
the amount to be repaid and direct the Owner whether to repay such amount to
the Governmental Unit for return to Commerce or repay the amount directly to
Commerce. All such amounts shall be due immediately upon demand by the
Governmental Unit or Commerce. If not paid within thirty (30) days following
demand, the unpaid amount due hereunder and under the Promissory Note shall
bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum after demand until paid. Upon
default in such payment, the Governmental Unit or Commerce may etnploy an
attorney to enforce their respective rights and remedies, and the Owner hereby
agrees to pay the legal costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees of the Governmental
Unit and Commerce plus all other reasonable expenses incurred by such party
in exercising any of its rights and remedies upon such defaults.

Legally Binding Commitment - 8



Page 072

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

(c). Ifthere is a breach of any of the requirements, covenants or agreements in this LBC
(including, without Jimitation, a failure to repay the amount required under Paragraph
13(b) within the time required), or if there are any representations or warranties which
are untrue as to a material fact in this LBC or in relation to the LBC or the Project
(including the performance thereof), the Owner agrees that the Governmental Unit or
Commerce may require repaymerit from the Owner of an amount of Loan fiinds to be
détermined in their sole discretion but not to exceed the amount of Loan funds the
Owner has already received under this LBC. Such requirements, covenants or
agreements inchide but are not limited to Paragraphs 2, 3, 4, 9, 11 and 12 of this LBC.

14. No Waiver by Governmental Unit or the State. Failure of the Governrmental Unit or the
State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority and Commerce) at any time to
require performence of any term or provision of this LBC shall in no manner affect the
rights of the Governmental Unit or the State at a later date to enforce the same or to enforce
any future compliance with or performance of any of the terms or provisions hereof. No

waiver of the Governmental Unit or the State of any condition or the breach of any term,
provision or representation contained in this LBC, whether by condict or otherwise, in-any
one or more instances, shall be deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing waiver
of any such condition or of the breach of that or any other term, provision or representation.

15. Waiver of Objections to Timeliness of Legal Action. The Owner knowingly waives any
objections it has or may have to timeliness of any legal action (including any administrative
petition or civil action) by the Governmental Unit or the State (including Commerce) to
enforce their rights under this LBC. This waiver includes any objections the Owner may
possess based on the statutes of limitations or repose and the doctrines of estoppel or
laches.

16. Special Provisions and Conditions.

(). Nondiscrimination. The Owner agrees that it will not, and will ensure that the
Business will not, discriminate by reason of age, race, religion, color, sex, national
origin or disability related to the activities of this LBC or the Project.

(b). Compliance with Laws. The Owner shall at all times, and shall cause any Business at
all times to, observe and comply with ail laws, regulations, codes, rules, ordinances
and other requirements (together, “Laws™) of the state, federal and local governments
which may in any manner affect the performance of the LBC or the Project.

(¢). Non-Assignability, The Owner shall not assign or transfer any interest in the LBC
without the prior written consent of the Governmental Unit and Commerce; provided
however, that claims for money due to the Owner from the Governmental Unit under
this LBC may be assigned to any commercial bank or other financial institution
without such approval.

(d). Personnel. The Owner represents that it and any Business have or will secure at their
own éxpense all personnel required to monitor, carry out and perform the scope of
services of this LBC and the Project. Such employees shall not be employees of the
State (including, without limitation, the Rural Authority or Commerce) or the
Governmental Unit. Such personnel shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized
under state and local law to perform such services.

Legally Binding Commitment - 9



Page 073

Rural Ecoriomic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

17. Notice. All notices required or permitted hereunder and all communications in respect
heredf shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or when
deposited in the United States Mail, certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and
addressed as follows:

If to the Governmental Unit: Attn: Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor
City of Thomasville
10 Salem Street

Thomasville, NC 27360

To the Owner: At faada  Alededroa
Brasr £ralh A Feedora, Co.
P8 co0e Orcdord f1/7 e ce

Al o), pfax 83N

or addressed to such other address or to the aitention of such other individusal as either party
above shall specify in a notice pursuant to this subsection.

18. Entire Agreement. This LBC supersedes all prior agreements between the Governmental
Unit and the Owner with regard to the Loan and the Project and expresses their entire
understanding with respect to the transactions contemplated herein, and shali not be
amended, modified or altered except pursuant to a writing signed by both Parties.

19. Execution. This LBC may be executed in one or more counterpasts, each of which, when
executed, shall be deemed an original, and all such counterparts, together, shall constitute
one and the same LBC which shall be sufficiently evidenced by one of such original

counterparts.

20. Construction. This LBC shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of North
Carolina.

21. Severability. Each provision of this LBC is intended to be severable and, if any provision
of this LBC is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair any other provision of this LBC, but
this LBC shall be construed as if such invalid, jllegal or unenforceable provision had not
been contained herein.

Legally Binding Commitment - 10



Page 074

Rural Economic Development Loan Agreement and EXHIBIT E
Legally Binding Commitment, Private Owner
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

22. Force Majeure. If (a) during the Grant Term the real or personal property located on or
constituting the Property suffers damage or destruction caused by acts of God, fires, floods,
storms, insurrection, riots, acts of the public enemy, national catastrophe, or similar unexpected
events, (b) such damage or destruction was not principally caused by the negligence, willful
misconduct or violation of applicable law by the Owner, (c) the Owner uses reasonable efforts
to repair, or to work around, such damage or destruction reasonably promptly, and (d) asa
direct result of such damage or destruction the Owner canriot satisfy the requirements and
obligations of Sections 3 of this Agreement as and when this Agreement requires, then the
Owner will be entitled to an extension of time not to exceed sixty (60) days to satisfy the
requirements and obligations of Section 3 of this Agreement; provided that the Governmental
Unit in its sole discretion with respect to the obligations it is owed by the Owner, may elect to
extend that sixty day period to give the Owner additional time to satisfy those requirements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this LBC as of the date first
above written.

Governmental Unit Name: City of Thomasville

Signature:
Printed Name: Raleigh York, Jr.
Title: Mayor

Owner Name: fraor Cral? Arcnafachrnny Compeasy

Signature: M- Z & é, [SEAL]

Printed Name: k/ﬂn Jf;. A, e /6/‘!/'.941

Title: Director o Moae Lects, sy Cpererions

Legally Binding Commitment - 11



Page 075

Promissory Note, Private Owner EXHIBITF

BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM
2022-086-3201-2587

For VALUE RECEIVED and subject to the terms of and secured by the Rural Economic
Development Loan Agreement and Legally Binding Commitment — Private-Owner Building
Reuse Program, Reference Number 2022-086-3201-2587 (“LBC,” which is incorporated by
reference herein), the undersigned borrower{s] (the “Owner”) jointly and severally promise[s] to
pay to lender the City of Thomasville or its assigns (together, the “Governmental Unit”) or to
the intended third-party beneficiary of this Promissory Note, the North Carolina Department of
Commerce (“Commerce”), upon demand and as directed by either the Governmental Unit or
Commerce, an amount of principal loan (“Loan”) funds under the LBC up to and including
$500,000.00 Dollars but which amount shall not exceed the amount of Loan funds the Owner has
actually received under the LBC, plus interest and attorney’s fees as addressed below. Unless
otherwise specified herein, capitalized terms in this Promissory Note shall have the same
meaning as those set forth in the LBC.

The Owner acknowledges and represents that: (i) the undersigned is or are the only
person(s), entity or entities who or that have any ownership interests in the certain real property
located at:

1024 Randolph St
Thomasville, NC 27360

in Davidson County, North Carolina (the “Property™); and (ii) the undersigned shall be jointly
and severally liable for any and all debts secured by this Promissory Note.

The Owner further acknowledges that; (i) in order for the Owner to receive the Loan, the
LBC requires the Owner to complete a “Project”; (ii) in order for the Owner to receive the Loan,
what the LBC identifies as the “Business” must maintain certain jobs and create and maintain
certain other jobs in working with the Owner to complete the Project; (iii) the Loan from the
Govermnmental Unit to the Owner under the LBC consists entirely of a grant from the State of
North Carolina to the Governmental Unit, subject to certain clawback provisions; (iv) Commerce
is an intended third-party beneficiary to the LBC and to this Promissory Note; and (v) the LBC
specifies those circumstances in which the Governmental Unit or Commerce can terminate the
LBC and require the Owner to repay an amount of Loan funds according to a formula or else in
an amount to be determined in the sole discretion of the Governmental Unit or Commerce but
which amount shall not exceed the amount of Loan funds the Owner has actually received under
the LBC. -

Upon default, the Governmental Unit and/or Commerce may employ attorneys to enforce
their rights and remedies under this Promissory Note and the LBC, and the Owner agrees to pay
their reasonable attomeys’ fees, plus all other reasonable expenses they incur in exercising their
rights and remedies upon default. The rights and remedies of the Governmental Unit and
Commerce, as described in this Promissory Note and the LBC, shall be cumulative and may be
pursued singly, successively or together against the Owner (including each of the undersigned),
the Property, or any other funds, property or security held by the Owner for payment or security,
in the sole discretion of the Governmental Unit and Commerce. The failure to exercise any such
right or remedy shall not be a waiver or release of such rights or remedies or the right to exercise
any of them at another time.

Promissory Note - 1



Page 076

Promissory Note, Private Owner EXHIBIT F
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM
2022-086-3201-2587

The Owner hereby waives protest, présentment, notice of dishonor and notice of
acceleration and maturity'and agrees to remain bound for the payment of principal, interest and
all other sums due under this Promissory Note and the LBC, notwithstanding any change or
changes by way of release, surrender, exchange, modification or substitution of any security for
this Promissory Note, or by way of any extension or extensions of time for the payment of
prificipal nd interest; and the Owner waives all and every kind of notice of such change or
changes and agrees that the sere may be made without notice of or consent to any of them.

This Promissory Note may not be amended, changed or altered except in writing
executed by the Owner, the Governmental Unit and Commerce.

If not repaid within 30 days following demand hereunder, the Loan funds demanded by
the Governmental Unit or Commerce under this Promissory Note shall bear interest at the rate of
10% per annum after demand until repaid. If either the Governmental Unit or Commerce
initially demands Loan repayment from the Owner (“First Demand”) in an amount less than the
Loan funds the Owner has actually received undér the LBC but, failing to receive repayment
and, in its discretion under the LBC, increases the Loan repayment demand (“Second Demand™)
to the full amount the Owner has received under the LBC, then such interest on the difference
between the First and Second Demands shall begin to accrue as of the date of the Second

Demand.

For example, if under the terms of the LBC, a Business engages in an improper
expenditure of Loan funds, the Governmental Unit has the discretion to require in a First
Demand the partial repayment of L.oan funds received by the Owner. Interest will begin to
accrue at 10% per annum on whatever portion of the sum is not repaid as of the 3 1" day after the
First Demand. Further, if the Owner fails to repdy the First Demand in full, the Governmental
Unit retains the discretion under the LBC to terminate the LBC and issue a Second Demand for
the full repayment by the Owner of all Loan funds. Interest will continue accruing at 10% per
annum on the original principal amount still unpaid from the First Demand and, following the
expiration of 30 days from the Second Demand, interest will begin to accrue at 10% per annum
on the additional unpaid principal Loan amount in the Second Demand.

Payment shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America via United
States Mail First Class, Federal Express or UPS to the attention of the person at the address or in
person at the address of the Governmental Unit or Commerce as directed in writing.

This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State
of North Carolina.

Promissory Note - 2



Page 077

Promissory Note, Private Owner EXHIBIT F
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM
2022-086-3201-2587

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has (have) caused these presents to be
execuied under seal, pursuant to authority duly given, the day and year first above written.

EVERY SIGNATORY BELOW EXPRESSLY REPRESENTS THAT ALL
INDIVUDALS OR ENTITIES WITH ANY OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN THE PROPERTY
HAVE EXECUTED THIS PROMISSORY NOTE.

Dated as of: , 20
If by Individual:
Signature: [SEAL]
Printed Name:
Dated as of: % M«é eZ » 20 _Z_Z_

Ifby Entity:  Brasr{reft Aana fe . loriay o

Signature: M/ /Z& [SEAL]

Printed Name: Agzm 4/5 A -'4/4'/- d <

Promissory Note - 3



Page 078

Limited Waiver of Confidentiality EXHIBIT G
Unemployment Tax and Wage Records
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM 2022-086-3201-2587

Name of Taxpayer /?/4 s CrerF Pl et A= e Ao riay <o
Address: ys ce® o e Lerd 7l Az e
City: N o S Sate: /77 Zipp 738 V5T phrone: FPE 479 - L0t

NC Unemployment Insurance Acct #: &2 — /0 ~/78¢ FRedTaxID#: 3d-/L3 5597

I hereby waive any right to confidentiality, as found in N.C.G.S. 96-4 or otherwise, for
the limited purpose of authorizing disclosure of certain information contained in the quarterly
unemployment insurance tax records of the above-named taxpayer (hereinafter, “Company™)
fled with the Division of Employment Security (“DES”) of the North Carolina Department of
Comumerce to the City of Thomasville (“Governmental Unit”) and to the employees of the Rural
Fconomic Division of the North Carolina Department of Commerce (“Rural Division™) and
members of the North Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority (“Rural Authority™) for the limited
purpose of evaluating the issuance of and, in the event of such issuance, administering and
ensuring compliance with, a grant and loan pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143B-472.127 and .128.

I recognize that DES is authorized to provide this information to the public officials of
the Governmental Unit, the Rural Division and the Rural Authority in the performance of their
public duties and that the verification of employment information for the purpose of
administering the grant and loan at issue is within the scope of the public duties of the
Governmental Unit, the Rural Division and the Rural Authority. 1hereby authorize DES to
disclose information contained in the Company’s quarterly unemployment insurance tax records
(the NCUI-101 or successor form) to the Govemnmental Unit, the Rural Division and/or the

Authority for these purposes.

1 recognize that unemployment insurance tax information provided in the aggregate to
DES and disclosed to the Governmental Unit, the Rural Division and/or the Authority, and the
Company’s aggregated tax and wage information provided to or otherwise in possession of the
Governmental Unit, the Rural Division and/or the Authority, may be treated as public
information. This waiver is not intended to release the Governmental Unit, the Rural Division
and/or the Authority from any obligation they may have under North Carolina Jaw to maintain
the confidentiality of any and all information which could reveal or permit someone to ascertain
the identity of any individual employee or that employee’s line item unemployment insurance
tax or other tax or wage information.

/! ‘_,," ‘_,/
Signature Chief Financial Officer or Other Authorized Company Official
%ﬂr\ Jc: /l:(/arf,/JW' ., Dreeror e Aop o faeForiay

Print Name Title PP ra s

Waiver of Confidentiality - 1



Page 079

Deed of Trust Documentation EXHIRITH
BUILDING REUSE PROGRAM

2022-086-3201-2587

The Department of Commerce strongly encourages, but does not require, the Governmental Unit
secure the funds loaned to the property owner, Thomas Mfg Co Inc of Thomasville, with a
Deed of Trust on the property.

1

O

Please check the appropriate box bcl(;w indicating the intention of the Governmental Unit:

The Governmental Unit will secure the funds with a Deed of Trust listing the City of
Thomasville as the beneficiary in the amount of $500.000.00.

The Ciity. of Thomasville (“Governmental Unit™) has elected NOT to secure with a deed
of trust on the subject property the $500,000.00 in grant funds awarded by the North
Carolina Department of Commerce (“Commerce™) for a building reuse grant.
Governmental Unit acknowledges and agrees that it is liable to the State for any grant
funds that must be repaid under the Grant Agreement or Legally Binding Commitment,
including (without limitation), any required repayments due to the property owner’s
failure to create and maintain jobs, which could include the full amount of the grant.
Governmental Unit acknowledges that its liability to Commerce arises whether or not it is
able to collect any repayment from the property owner under the Legally Binding
Commitment, but still elects not to obtain a deed of trust on the subject property.

Please fill in the box below:,

Governmental Unit Name: City of Thomasville
F LN )
By (Signature): /Qwé.u;;/ﬁ (701,4 9
Printed Name: Ra.leigl_’z York, Jr.
Title: Mavyor
Date: 6&’[ c;)\“\j 0 N

Deed of Trust Documentation - 1



Page 080

City of Thomasville

Budget Amendment

To:  City Manager

From: Finance Director ___
Date: 4/1/2022 s
Re:

2021-2022 Water/Sewer Enterprise Fund Budget Amendment

This Water/Sewer Fund budget amendment appropriates the city's equity contribution to the
2022 Revenue Refunding Bond Capital Project.

WATER/SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

DECREASE APPROPRIATION
030-9010-505-58-00 Contingency $47,510.00

INCREASE APPROPRIATION
030-7098-572-90-61 Contribution to W/S Capital Project Fund $47,510.00



Page 081

CiTY oF THOMASVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Combined Enterprise Systém Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2022

CLOSING MEMORANDUM
To: Working Group
From: First Tryon Advisors
Date: January 28, 2022
Re: City of Thomasville, North Carolina (“City”)

Combiried Enterprise System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2022 (the “Bond”)

I Closing (nformation

Closing Date: February 8, 2022

Closing Contacts: Thomas Avant, City of Thomasville 336.475.4233
Misti Whitman, Citrin & Whitman P.A. 336.476.3158
Jennifer Wimmer, Local Government Commission 919.814.4284
Donna Davis, Local Government Commission 919.814.4293
Jon Mize, Womble Bond Dickinson (US) LLP 919.756.2187
David Cheatwood, Fifst Tryon Advisors 704.926.2447
Ken Leonczyk, Pinnacle Bank 704.985.7928
Steve Cordell, Nexsen Pruet, PLLC 704.338.5337
Shawna Hale, US Bank N.A. 919.424.3944

il. Sources and Uses of Funds

$Sources:of Funds

Par Amount $ 4,731,000.00
City Equity Contribution 47,509.79
Total Sources of Funds $ 4,778,509.79
Uses.of Fufids

Refunding Deposit $ 4,683,162.50
Cost of issuance 95,347.29
Total Uses of Funds $ 4,778,509.79

IR Flow of Funds

On the morning of Tuesday, February 8, 2022, Pinnacle Bank as purchaser, shall wire $4,731,000.00 to US
Bank N.A. as Trustee, pursuant to the wiring instructions below, to facilitate the closing of the Bond:

RBK:

ABA:

BNF:

Beneficiary Account Number:
Beneficiary Account Address:
DBI:

U.S, Bank N.A,

091000022

USBank CT Southeast Wire Cirg

A/C 173103781824

777 E. Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, W! §3202-5300
Thomasville 2022

i II".\'))/H{W M

Page 1012



Page 082

Ciry oF THOMASVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Combined Enterprise System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2022

CLOSING MEMORANDUM

A City Equity Contribution

On or before the morning of Tuesday, February 8, 2022, the City shall wire $47,509.79 to US Bank N.A. as
Trustee, pursuant to the wiring instructions below:

RBK: U.S. Bank N.A.
ABA: 091000022
BNF: USBank CT Southeast Wire Clrg

Beneficiary Account Number: A/C 173103781824
Beneficiary Account Address: 777 E. Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, Wl 53202-5300
oBl: Thomasville 2022

Upon receipt of the wire in Section Il and the wire above, US Bank N.A. shall combine $4,635,652.71 of funds
received from Pinnacle Bank with $47,508.79 of funds received from the City and deposit such funds (totaling
$4,683,162.50) into the Series 2012 Subaccount of the Redemption Account created under the 2012 Seties
Resolution to be applied as directed in the Letter of Instructions to the Trustee. US Bank N.A. shall deposit the
remaining $85,347.29 into the Series 2022 Cost of Issuance Account.

V. Release of Bond

Upon confirmed receipt of the above referenced funds and the execution of all closing documents, bond
counsel should notify the working group that the transaction has closed.

Vi. Costs of Issuance

On or afier the Closing Date, US Bank N.A., on behalf of the City, will disburse funds to make payment against
invoices received by the City for services rendered in connection with the issuance of the Bond. Invoices should

be submitted to:

Thomas Avant

Finance Director

10 Salem Street
Thomasville, NC 27360

thomas avant@thomasvyille-nc.gov

Acknowledged and agreed to as of February 8, 2022.

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Name:

Title: ﬁ;?ﬂ?{ (4 AI}(‘f(/‘fé'/ ’

!]R\‘l//TR\( '.\« — — - — — — —— — PageZofz
-



Page 083

ELIGIBLE PROJECT POLICY FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021
CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE

WHEREAS the City of Thomasville, has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF);
and

WHEREAS US Treasury is responsible for implementing ARP/CSLFRF and has enacted a Final Rule
outlining eligible projects; and

WHEREAS the funds may be used for projects within these categories, to the extent authorized
by state law.

1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and
prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and responding
to violence, and certain public health and safety staff;

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries, and
the public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to
the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have
borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical
infrastructure sectors; and,

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and

WHEREAS the ARP/CSLFRF are subject to the provisions of the federal Uniform Grant Guidance,
2 CFR Part 200 (UG), as provided in the Assistance Listing; and

WHEREAS US Treasury has issued a Compliance and Reporting Guidance v.2.1 (November 15,
2021) dictating implementation of the ARP/CSLFRF award terms and compliance requirements;
and

WHEREAS the Compliance and Reporting Guidance states on page 6 that

Per 2 CFR Part 200.303, your organization must develop and implement effective
internal controls to ensure that funding decisions under the SLFRF award constitute
eligible uses of funds, and document determinations.

BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Thomasville hereby adopts and enacts the following Eligibility
Determination Policy for ARP/CSLFRF funds.

Eligible Use Policy
City of Thomasville
2022



Page 084

Eligibility Determination Policy for American Rescue Plan Act of 2021

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

This policy defines the permissible and prohibited uses of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF) funds. It also
outlines the procedures for determining how the City of Thomasville will spend its ARP/CSLFRF
funds.

L. PERMISSIBLE USES OF ARP/CSLFRF FUNDING

US Treasury issued its Final Rule regarding use of ARPA funds on January 6, 2022. (The Final Rule
is effective as of April 1, 2022. Until that date, a local government may proceed under the
regulation promulgated by US Department of the Treasury in its Interim Final Rule or the Final
Rule.) The Final Rule (and the Interim Final Rule) identify permissible uses of ARP/CSLFRF funds
and certain limitations and process requirements. Local governments must allocate ARP/CSLFRF
funds no later than December 31, 2024 and disburse all funding no later than December 31, 2026.
Failure of an entity to expend all funds by December 31, 2026 will result in forfeiture of ARPA
funds.

ARP/CSLFRF funds may be used for projects within the following categories of expenditures:

1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and
prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and responding
to violence, and certain public health and safety staff;

2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including
economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted
industries, and the public sector;

3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to
the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;

4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have
borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical
infrastructure sectors; and

5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to
improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater
infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and

(. PROHIBITED USES OF ARPA FUNDING
The ARP/CSLFRF and US Treasury’s Final Rule prohibit certain uses of ARP/CSLFRF funds.
Specifically, ARP/CSLFRF funds may not be used for projects within the following categories of
expenditures:

Eligible Use Policy
City of Thomasville
2022



Page 085

1. To make a deposit into a pension fund that constitutes an extraordinary payment of
an accrued, unfunded liability (Note that routine contributions as part of a payroll
obligation for an eligible project are allowed.);

2. To borrow money or make debt service payments;

To replenish rainy day funds or fund other financial reserves;

4. To satisfy an obligation arising from a settlement agreement, judgment, consent
decree, or judicially confirmed debt restricting in a judicial, administrative, or
regulatory proceeding (There is an exception to this prohibition if the settlement or
judgment requires the City of Thomasville to provide services to respond to the
COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts or to provide
government services, then the costs of those otherwise ARP/CSLFRF-eligible projects
are allowed.);

5. For a project that includes a term or condition that undermines efforts to stop the
spread of COVID-19 or discourages compliance with recommendations and
guidelines in CDC guidance for stopping the spread of COVID-19;

6. In violation of the conflict-of-interest requirements imposed by the award terms and
2 CFR 200.318(c).

7. Forany expenditure that would violate other applicable federal, state, and local laws
and regulations.

w

The City of Thomasville, and any of its contractors or subrecipients, may not expend any
ARP/CSLFRF funds for these purposes.

. PROCEDURES FOR PROJECT APPROVAL

The following are procedures for ARP/CSLFRF project approvals. All City of Thomasville
employees and officials must comply with these requirements.

1. Requests for ARP/CSLFRF funding, must be made in writing and include all the following:
a. Brief description of the project
b. Identification of ARP/CSLFRF Expenditure Category (EC) (A list of ECs in in the
Appendix to the US Treasury Compliance and Reporting Guidance.)
c. Required justifications for applicable projects, according to the requirements in
the Final Rule. Employees or any applicant seeking ARPA funding should review
the Final Rule and Final Rule Overview prior to submitting a proposal.

d. Proposed budget, broken down by cost item, in accordance with the City of
Thomasville’s Allowable Cost Policy.
e. A project implementation plan and estimated implementation timeline (All
ARP/CSLFRF funds must be fully obligated by December 31, 2024, and fully
expended by December 31, 2026.)
2. Requests for funding must be submitted to the ARPA Grant Analyst for approval. All
requests will be reviewed by the Assistant City Manager for ARP/CSLFRF compliance and
by the Finance Director for allowable costs and other financial review.

Eligible Use Policy
City of Thomasville
2022



Page 086

3. No ARP/CSLFRF funds may be obligated or expended before final written approval by
the Assistant City Manager or Finance Director. City Council approval is required for the
appropriation of all project funds.

4, If a proposal does not meet the required criteria, it will be returned to the requesting
party for revision and resubmittal.

5. Following approval, employees responsible for implementing the project must conform
actual obligations and expenditures to the pre-approved project budget. Changes in
project budgets must be approved by City Council through approval of a grant project
ordinance. Any delay in the projected project completion date shall be communicated to
the ARPA Grant Analyst immediately.

6. The ARPA Grant Analyst must collect and document required information for each EC,
for purposes of completing the required Project and Expenditure reports.

7. The ARPA Grant Analyst must maintain written project requests and approvals, all
supporting documentation, and financial information at least until December 31, 2031.

ADOPTED this 18th day of April, 2022

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Eligible Use Policy
City of Thomasville
2022



Page 087

Recitals

WHEREAS, the City of Thomasville has received an allocation of funds from the “Coronavirus
State Fiscal Recovery Fund” or “Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund” (together “CSLFRF
funds™), established pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the Social Security Act, as added by
Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (the “ARP/CSLFRF

award”).

WHEREAS, CSLFRF funds are subject to the U.S. Department of Treasury (“Treasury”)
regulations, including the Final Rule, the Award Terms and Conditions, and the Title VII
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, and as a condition of
receiving CSLFRF funds, the City of Thomasville agrees to follow all federal statutes and
regulations prohibiting discrimination in its administration of CSLFRF under the terms and
conditions of the ARP/CSLFRF award, including, without limitation, the following:

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis
of race, color, or national origin within programs or activities receiving federal financial
assistance; ‘

ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance;

iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination
on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and

v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101
et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs,
activities, and services provided or made available by state and City of Thomasville or
instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

RESOLVED, That the governing board of the City of Thomasville hereby adopts and enacts the
following nondiscrimination policy, which shall apply to the operations of any matter of
employment, program, activity, or facility that is supported in whole, or in part, by expenditures
CSLFRF pursuant to thee ARP/CSLFRF award.



Page 088

Nondiscrimination Policy Statement

It is the policy of the City of Thomasville to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race,
color, national origin (including limited English Proficiency), familial status, sex, age, or
disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the befits of, or be otherwise subject to
discrimination under any matter of employment, program or activity administered by City of
Thomasville, including programs or activities that are funded in whole or part, with Coronavirus
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ("CSLFRF”), which the City of Thomasville received
from the U.S. Department of Treasury (“Treasury’) pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the
Social Security Act, as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L.
No. 117-2 (herein the “ARP/CSLFRF award”).

1. Governing Statutorv & Regulatory Authorities

As required by the CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, the City of Thomasville shall ensure
that each matter of “employment,” “activity,” “facility,” or “program™’ that is funded in whole,
or in part, with CSLFRF and administered under the ARP/CSLFRF award, will be facilitated,
operated, or conducted in compliance with the following federal statutes and federal regulations
prohibiting discrimination. These include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis
of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial
assistance;

ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion,
national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving
federal financial assistance;

iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination
on the basis of age within programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance;
and

v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101
et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs,
activities, and services provided or made available by state and City of Thomasville or
instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

1 22 C.F.R. § 22.3 defines “program” and “activity” as all operations of an entity, including City of Thomasville, that
receive Federal financial assistance, and the departments, agencies, or special purpose districts of the City of
Thomasville to which Federal financial assistance is distributed. “Federal financial assistance” includes, among
other things, grants and loans of federal funds. “Facility” includes all or any part of structures, equipment, or other
real or personal property or interests therein, and the provision of facilities includes the construction, expansion,
renovation, remodeling, alteration, or acquisition of facilities.



II.

Page 089

Discriminatory Practices Prohibited in the Administration of the ARP/CSLFRF
Award

To ensure compliance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title 31 Code of
Federal Regulations, Part 22, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and other pertinent
nondiscrimination authorities, the City of Thomasville shall prohibit, at a minimum, the

following practices in its administration of CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award:

10.

Denying to a person any service, financial aid, or other program benefit without good
cause;

Providing to a person any service, financial aid, or another benefit which is different in
quantity or quality, or is provided in a different manner, from that provided to others
under the program.

Subjecting a person to segregation or separate treatment in any matter related to the
receipt of any service, financial aid, or other benefit under the program;

Restricting a person in the enjoyment of any advantages, privileges, or other benefits
enjoyed by others receiving any service, financial aid, or other benefit under the program;
Treating a person differently from others in determining whether that person satisfies any
admission, enrollment, quota, eligibility, membership, or other requirement or condition
which persons must meet to be provided any service, financial aid, or other benefit
provided under the program;

Implementing different standards, criteria, or other requirements for admission,
enrollment, or participation in planning, advisory, contractual, or other integral activities
to the program;

Adopting methods of administration which, directly or through contractual relationships,
would defeat or substantially impair the accomplishment of effective nondiscrimination;
Selecting a site or location of facilities with the purpose or effect of excluding persons
from, denying them the benefits of, subjecting them to discrimination, or with the
purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the
objectives of Title VI or related acts and regulations;

Discriminating against any person, either directly or through a contractual agreement, in
any employment resulting from the program, a primary objective of which is to provide
employment;

Committing acts of intimidation or retaliation, including threatening, coercing, or
discriminating against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or
privilege secured by any pertinent nondiscrimination law, or because an individual made
a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing.



Page 090

III. Reporting & Enforcement

1. The City of Thomasville shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review
activities by the Department of the Treasury. Enforcement may include investigation,
arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement agreements that
may result from these actions. The City of Thomasville shall comply with
information requests, on-site compliance reviews, and reporting requirements.

2. The City of Thomasville shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Treasury of
any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin
(including limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 and implementing regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such
reviews or proceedings based on the complaint, whether pending or completed,
including the outcome. The City of Thomasville shall inform the Treasury if it has
received no complaints under Title VI.

3. Any person who believes they have been aggrieved by a discriminatory practice
under Title VI has a right to file a formal complaint with the Treasury. Any such
complaint must be in writing and filed with the Treasury’s Title VI Coordinator
within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of the alleged discriminatory
occurrence.

4. Any person who believes that because of that person’s race, color, national origin,
limited English proficiency, familial status, sex, age, religion, or disability that
he/she/they have been discriminated against or unfairly treated by the City of
Thomasville in violation of this policy should contact the following office within 180
days from the date of the alleged discriminatory occurrence:

a. The Human Resources Director will be the person charged with overseeing

any complaints received by the City of Thomasville related to alleged
discriminatory violations of this policy.

ADOPTED this 18th day of April, 2022

Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk



Page 091

Record Retention Policv: Documents Created or Maintained Pursuant to the
ARP/CSLFRF Award

Retention of Records: The Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“CSLFRF”’) Award

and the Compliance and Reporting set forth the U.S.
Department of Treasury’s (“Treasury”) record retention requirements for the ARP/CSLFRF
award.

It is the policy of the City of Thomasville to follow Treasury’s record retention requirements as it
expends CSLFRF pursuant to the APR/CSLFRF award. Accordingly, the City of Thomasville
agrees to the following;:

e Retain all financial and programmatic records related to the use and expenditure of
CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award for a period of five (5) vears after all
CLFREF funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later.

e Retain records for real property and equipment acquired with CSLFRF for five years
after final disposition.

o Ensure that the financial and programmatic records retained sufficiently evidence
compliance with section 603(c) of the Social Security Act “ARPA,” Treasury’s
regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the
foregoing.

e Allow the Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability
Office, or their authorized representatives, the right of right of timely and unrestricted
access to any records for the purpose of audits or other investigations.

e If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 5-year period, the
records will be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records
have been resolved.

Covered Records: For purposes of this policy, records are information, regardless of physical
form or characteristics, that are created, received, or retained that evidence the City of
Thomasville’s expenditure of CSLFRF funds on eligible projects, programs, or activities
pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award.

Records that shall be retained pursuant to this policy include, but are not limited to, the
following:

¢ Financial statements and accounting records evidencing expenditures of CSLFRF for
eligible projects, programs, or activities.



Page 092

e Documentation of rational to support a particular expenditure of CSLFRF (e.g.,
expenditure constitutes a general government service);

e Documentation of administrative costs charged to the ARP/CSLFRF award;

e Procurement documents evidencing the significant history of a procurement, including, at
a minimum, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type,
contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for contract cost or price;

e Subaward agreements and documentation of subrecipient monitoring;

e Documentation evidencing compliance with the Uniform Guidance property management
standards set forth in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.310-316 and 200.329;

e Personnel and payroll records for full-time and part-time employees compensated with
CSLFREF, including time and effort reports; and

e Indirect cost rate proposals

Storage: City of Thomasville’s records must be stored in a safe, secure, and accessible manner.
Wherever practicable, such records should be collected, transmitted, and stored in open and
machine-readable formats.

Departmental Responsibilities: Any department or unit of City of Thomasville, and its
employees, who are responsible for creating or maintaining the covered documents in this policy
shall comply with the terms of this policy. Failure to do so may subject the City of Thomasville
to civil and/or criminal liability. Any employee who fails to comply with the record retention
requirements set forth herein may be subject to disciplinary sanctions, including suspension or
termination.

The City Clerk is responsible for identifying the documents that City of Thomasville must or
should retain and arrange for the proper storage and retrieval of records. The City Clerk shall
also ensure that all personnel subject to the terms of this policy are aware of the record retention
requirements set forth herein.

Reporting Policy Violations: The City of Thomasville is committed to enforcing this policy as
it applies to all forms of records. Any employee that suspects the terms of this policy have been
violated shall report the incident immediately to that employee’s supervisor. If an employee is
not comfortable bringing the matter up with the supervisor, the employee may bring the matter to
the attention of the City Clerk. The City of Thomasville prohibits, any form of discipline,
reprisal, intimidation, or retaliation for reporting incidents of inappropriate conduct of any kind,
pursuing any record destruction claim, or cooperating in related investigations.

Questions About the Policy: Any questions about this policy should be referred to Wendy
Martin, City Clerk at Wendy.Martin@thomasville-nc.gov, who is in charge of administering,
enforcing, and updating this policy.




Page 093

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, NC

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION REQUESTING LOCAL LEGISLATION OF THE N.C. GENERAL
ASSEMBLY CONSIDER AMENDING THE APPOINTMENT PROCESS FORTHE
THOMASVILLE CITY SCHOOL BOARD FROM
APPOINTED MEMBERS TO ELECTED MEMBERS

WHEREAS, the Thomasville City School Administrative Unit was established in 1965
pursuant to Chapter 26, Session Laws by North Carolina, with amendments having been made on
numerous occasions by the North Carolina Legislature; and

WHEREAS, the City of Thomasville appoints all (5) five members of the Thomasville
City Schools Board of Education; and

WHEREAS, the Thomasville City Schools Board of Education is one of two Boards of
Education within North Carolina whereby members are appointed by the local municipal Council
compared to 113 Boards of Education within North Carolina whereby members are elected by the
voters within the school's attendance area during the May primary or November general elections;
and

WHEREAS, the Thomasville City Council recognizes the importance of the citizens and
parents ability to have a say in the election of the representatives on the Thomasville City
Schools Board of Education, and therefore, respectfully request that the appointment process of the
Thomasville City Schools Board of Education be amended to relinquish the appointing duties of
the Thomasville City Council and instead allow for the members to be elected by the citizens in
accordance with provisions of law relating to such election and in accordance with the laws
governing general elections in the State of North Carolina as the same shall be applicable; and

WHEREAS, the Thomasville City Council recommends members of the Thomasville
City Schools Board of Education be elected based on four-year terms, with initial elections
having two (2) members elected for a term of two (2) years and three (3) members elected for a
term of four (4) years; no member shall serve more than two (2) consecutive full terms without an
intervening period of four (4) years; and appointments for an unexpired portion of a term shall
not be considered as a full term appointment;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Thomasville requests that the local legislation of the N.C. General Assembly consider amending
the appointment process of the Thomasville City Schools Board of Education from appointed
members to elected members consisting of five (5) members elected from citizens who reside
inside the City limits; and



Page 094

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the
City of Thomasville recommends the Thomasville City Schools Board of Education election
process be based on four-year terms, with initial elections having two (2) members elected for a
term of two (2) years and three (3) members elected for a term of four (4) years; no member shall
serve more than two (2) consecutive full terms without an intervening period of four (4) years;
and appointments for an unexpired portion of a term shall not be considered as a full term
appointment. The first election shall take place November 7, 2023.

Adopted this the 18™ day of April, 2022.

CITY OF THOMASVILLE

By:
[SEAL] Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor

Attest: )
Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



Page 095

AN ORDINANCE TO ENACT CHAPTER 70, ARTICLE VI OF THE
THOMASVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES: SOCIAL DISTRICT

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE:

Chapter 70, Article VI of the Thomasville Code of Ordinances is hereby enacted to
read as follows:

Section 1:  Article VI- SOCIAL DISTRICT

Section 70-160. — Purpose and Intent.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statute 160A-205.4, et segq,
one or more social districts may be created within the city and the City hereby
creates and designates the following social district: Downtown Thomasville
Social District which is designated as shown on a map dated
the map is available in the Office of the City Clerk, and signage and/or markmgs
shall be posted clearly delineating the boundaries of the Social District.

(b) The Thomasville Social District shall be created, designated, and managed in
accordance with the requirements contained in North Carolina General Statute
160A-205.4 and Chapter 18B.

(c) Any person who violates this Article, and any person who aids, abets,
encourages, assists in, or contributes to such violation, shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor with a fine of $25.00.

Sec. 70-161. — Definitions.

(@) “Social district” means and refers to a defined outdoor area in which a citizen
may consume alcoholic beverages sold by a permittee. This term does not
include the permittee's licensed premises or an extended area allowed under
North Carolina General Statute 18B-904(h).

(b) “Permittee” means and refers to a person holding any of the following ABC
permits issued by the North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission
established under North Carolina General Statute 18B-200.:

i. An on-premises malt beverage permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-
1001(1).

ii. An on-premises unfortified wine permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-
1001(3).

iii. An on-premises fortified wine permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-
1001(5).

iv. A mixed beverages permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(10).

v. A distillery permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1100(5).



Page 096

(©) "Person" means and refers to an individual, firm, partnership, association,
corporation, limited liability company, other organization or group, or other
combination of individuals acting as a unit.

(d) "Premises" means and refers to a fixed permanent establishment, including all
areas inside or outside the permitted establishment, where the permittee has
control through a lease, deed, or other legal process.

Sec. 70-162. — Application.

() The provisions and terms contained in this Article shall be applicable between the
hours of 11:00 a.m. and 10 p.m., Monday through Sunday. At all other times, the
provisions and terms contained in this Article are not in effect and all provisions
of State and local laws concerning the possession and consumption of alcohol
shall be in full force and effect.

(b) Any alcoholic beverage purchased for consumption in the Thomasville Social
District shall (i) only be consumed in the Thomasville Social District and (ii) be
disposed of before the person in possession of the alcoholic beverage exits the
establishment's outdoor area unless the person is reentering the licensed premises
where the alcoholic beverage was purchased. A violation of this Section is a
Class 3 misdemeanor.

Sec. 70-163. — Requirements for Sale of Alcoholic Beverages. - A permittee located in
or contiguous to the Thomasville Social District may sell alcoholic beverages for
consumption within the Thomasville Social District it is located in or contiguous to in
accordance with the following requirements as required by NCGS 18B-904.1(d)

(a) The permittee shall only sell and serve alcoholic beverages on its licensed
premises.

(b) The permittee shall only sell alcoholic beverages for consumption in the
Thomasville Social District in a container that meets all of the following
requirements:

(1)  The container clearly identifies the permittee from which the
alcoholic beverage was purchased.

(2) The container clearly displays a logo or some other mark that is
unique to the Thomasville Social District.

3) The container is not comprised of glass.

4) The container displays, in no less than 12-point font, the statement,
"Drink Responsibly - Be 21."



Page 097

) The container shall not hold more than 16 fluid ounces.

(©) The permittee shall not allow a person to enter or reenter its licensed premises
with an alcoholic beverage not sold by the permittee.

Sec. 70-164. — Requirements for Possession and Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages. -
The possession and consumption of an alcoholic beverage in the Thomasville Social
District is subject to all of the following requirements:

() Only alcoholic beverages purchased from a permittee located in or contiguous to
the Thomasville Social District may be possessed and consumed.

(b) Alcoholic beverages shall only be in containers meeting the requirements set forth
in Section 70-163 of this Article.

© Alcoholic beverages shall only be possessed and consumed during the days and
hours set forth in Section 70-162 of this Article.

@) Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as authorizing the sale and delivery
of alcoholic beverage drinks in excess of the limitation set forth in North Carolina
General Statute 18B-1010.

(e) A person shall dispose of any alcoholic beverage in the person's possession prior
to exiting the establishment unless the person is reentering the licensed premises
where the alcoholic beverage was purchased.

® A violation of this Section is a Class 3 misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine of $25.00.
Sec. 70-165. — Exceptions.

When a Special Event is held pursuant to the issuance of a Special Event Permit the
terms of the Special Event Permit supersede the provisions of this Article within the
boundaries of the Special Event. Any alcohol purchased within the boundaries of the
Special Event may not be taken outside of the Special Event, even if the alcohol is to be
taken from the boundary of the Special Event into the boundary of the Social District. A
violation of this Section is a Class 3 misdemeanor.

Sec. 70-166. — Severability.

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this ordinance is held void, invalid,
unconstitutional or unenforceable for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction,
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision; and such
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.



Page 098

Section 2. This Article shall become effective 90 days from the date of adoption.

Section 3. That all ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Upon the motion of member of Council . and a second by
member of Council , the foregoing ordinance was passed
upon its first reading by a vote of

CITY OF THOMASVILLE

By:
Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor

Attest:
Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk

[SEAL]



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Page 099

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of a wastewater
treatment works, and

The City of Thomasville has need for and intends to construct a wastewater treatment
works project described as the installation of a centrifuge and all associated
appurtenances, and

The City of Thomasville intends to request State grant assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE:

That the City of Thomasville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs
of the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That Michael Brandt, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the study of or construction of the project
described above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the day of , 2022 at Thomasville, North Carolina.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor



Page 100

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Thomasville does hereby certify: That
the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an
application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the

City of Thomasville City Council duly held on the day of , 2022; and, further, that

such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2022,

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Page 101

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of a drinking water
distribution system, and

The City of Thomasville has need for and intends to construct a drinking water distribution
system project described as the 2021 Waterline Replacement Project involving the
replacement of existing 2-inch diameter galvanized waterlines with approximately 17,500
LF of new 6-inch diameter ductile iron pipe waterlines, and

The City of Thomasville intends to request State loan and/or grant assistance for the
project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE:

That the City of Thomasville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs
of the project, if approved for a State loan and/or grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of Thomasville to make
scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of Thomasville any State
funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an amount
sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of the loan.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That Michael Brandt, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a loan and/or grant to aid in the study of or construction of
the project described above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the day of , 2022 at Thomasville, North Carolina.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor



Page 102

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Thomasville does hereby certify: That
the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an
application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the

City of Thomasville City Council duly held on the day of ,2022; and, further, that

such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of ,2022.

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Page 103

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of studies of drinking water
distribution system, and

The City of Thomasville has need for and intends to conduct a study on a water
distribution system described as an Asset and Inventory Assessment of the water
distribution system to aid the City of Thomasville in becoming more viable and to take a
more proactive approach to the management and financing of the water distribution
system, and

The City of Thomasville intends to request State AlA grant assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE:

That the City of Thomasville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs
of the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That Michael Brandt, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the study of or construction of the project
described above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the day of , 2022 at Thomasville, North Carolina.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor



Page 104

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Thomasville does hereby certify: That
the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an
application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the

City of Thomasville City Council duly held on the day of ,2022; and, further, that

such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2022,

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Page 105

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of studies of wastewater collection
system, and

The City of Thomasville has need for and intends to conduct a study on a wastewater
collection system described as an Asset and Inventory Assessment of the wastewater
collection system to aid the City of Thomasville in becoming more viable and to take a
more proactive approach to the management and financing of the wastewater collection
system, and

The City of Thomasville intends to request State AlA grant assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THOMASVILLE:

That the City of Thomasville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs
of the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That Michael Brandt, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the study of or construction of the project
described above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the day of , 2022 at Thomasville, North Carolina.

Raleigh York, Jr., Mayor



Page 106

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Thomasville does hereby certify: That
the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an
application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the

City of Thomasville City Council duly held on the day of , 2022; and, further, that

such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of , 2022,

Wendy S. Martin, City Clerk



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Page 107

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT

The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction and studies of
drinking water distribution system and wastewater collections system projects, and

The City of Thomasville has need for and intends to construct a wastewater collection
system project described as the replacement and expansion of aging infrastructure. The
wastewater collection project that is mentioned above is the Rains Road Pump Station
and Forcemain Replacement project. The named project is a part of the City of
Thomasville Capital Improvements Project Plan.

The City of Thomasville intends to request State grant assistance for the projects.

Now therefore be it resolved, by the City Council of the City of Thomasville:

That City of Thomasville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of
the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of Thomasville to make
scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of Thomasville any State
funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an amount
sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of the loan.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That Michael Brandt, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a loan and/or grant to aid in the study of or construction of
the project described above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the 18" of April 2022 at Ball Park Community Center, Thomasville, North
Carolina.

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer)

(Title)



Page 108

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Thomasville does hereby certify: That
the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an
application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the

City of Thomasville City Council duly held on the day of April, 2022; and, further, that such

resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS

WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of , 20

(Signature of Recording Officer)

(Title of Recording Officer)





